MINUTES OF THE
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2019, AT 8:30 A.M.

KPUB CONFERENCE ROOM
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OFFICES
2250 MEMORIAL BLVD.
KERRVILLE, TEXAS

TRUSTEES PRESENT: STAFF PRESENT:
Fred Gamble Mike Wittler, General Manager and CEO
Bill Thomas Jill Sadberry, Chief Financial Officer
Philip Stacy Tommy Nylec, Chief Engineer
Mark Cowden Gerald Bryla, Controller
Mayor Bill Blackburn Tammye Riley, HR Manager

Jo Anderson, Customer Service Manager

Allison Bueché, Marketing Manager

Lidia S. Goldthorn, Assistant Secretary to the Board
TRUSTEES ABSENT: OTHERS PRESENT:

Steve Schulte, Legal Counsel
Gilbert Salinas, KEDC

1. CALL TO ORDER:

Mr. Fred Gamble, Chairman, called the Regular Monthly Meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The Trustees reviewed the minutes of the October 16, 2019 Regular Monthly Board Meeting.
Philip Stacy, Secretary, motioned to approve the minutes. Mark Cowden, Treasurer, seconded the motion.
Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 5 — 0.

4. CITIZEN/CONSUMER OPEN FORUM:

There were no citizens/consumers to speak.

Page 1 of 4

§))




S. ANNOUNCEMENTS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST:

Mr. Wittler advised that he attended the Engie Solar Project ground breaking. Mr. Wittler advised
that Mayor Blackburn presented a Proclamation for National Apprenticeship Week, honoring KPUB
employees who are enrolled in the apprenticeship program. He also advised that Work Order Clerk Norma
Martinez completed a three-year certification program last month. The Employee Christmas Party will be
on December 6. The December Regular Monthly Board Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, December
18,2019 at 8:30 a.m. There were no other announcements.

6. QUARTERLY REPORT FROM THE KERRVILLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (KEDC) — GILBERT SALINAS, COO:

Mr. Salinas provided an end of year report to the Board. Mr. Salinas gave a review of active
projects being developed as well as prospect leads. He also advised that KEDC has been meeting with local
industry companies as well as local, state and federal agencies. Mr. Salinas has hosted site selectors and
other economic development agencies to bring more prospects to Kerrville. He advised they are helping to
connect applicants and employers as well as highlighting residential options needed for prospective
workforce. Board members thanked Mr. Salinas for his efforts.

7. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 19-20 — JILL SADBERRY,
CFO:

Ms. Sadberry presented this month’s wire transfers for operating expenses to the Board. Mr.
Cowden motioned for approval of Resolution No. 19-20. Bill Thomas, Vice Chairman, seconded the
motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 5 — 0.

8. FINANCIAL REPORT — JILL SADBERRY, CFO:

Ms. Sadberry presented Financial Statements (unaudited) for the Fiscal Year 2020 through
October 31, 2019. Ms. Sadberry reviewed the Statements and Balance Sheets for the month. She stated at
October 31, 2019, operating expenses, excluding power cost, were below budget by $165,085.59 or by
17.22%. The balance in the over-collected power cost was $2,809,393.13. Ms. Sadberry noted the balance
in the Rate Stabilization Fund was $1,885,402.35. The Debt Service Coverage was 19.56 for the month
and 19.56 for the Fiscal Year.

9. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON SEPTEMBER QUARTERLY FUNDS REPORT —
JILL SADBERRY., CFO:

Ms. Sadberry presented the summary pages on the Quarterly Funds Report for the quarter ending
September 30, 2019; which summarizes the fund investments. Ms. Sadberry advised KPUB is required by
state law to present the quarterly report for the Board’s acceptance after review by the Investment
Committee. This item did not require a motion and second because it was being submitted for Board
approval by the Investment Committee. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 5 — 0.

10. QUARTERLY REPORTS: ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS PROJECTS — CAPITAL
BUDGET SUMMARY., CUMULATIVE PURCHASING ACTIVITY, AND RELTABILITY
- TOMMY NYLEC, CHIEF ENGINEER:

Mr. Nylec presented a spreadsheet summarizing spending for the Capital Budget through the fourth
quarter of fiscal year end 2019. Mr. Nylec also presented a spreadsheet summarizing disbursements by

Page 2 ot 4

()




check with cumulative activity to payees above $10,000.00 for the period October 1, 2018 through
September 30, 2019 by month. He highlighted the airport underground project; which was delayed and
projected to put the total capital budget at 60% spent upon its completion. He also advised that the Hunt
Station project is completed. Also provided at the Board’s request was a quarterly check register of single
payments over $10,000.00 to accompany the cumulative report. Mr. Nylec also presented the quarterly
reliability reports summarizing industry performance indices by substation, feeder, and entire system by
month. In the monthly summary, total number of customers connected was also reflected. Service
summary also identified common outage causes and Major Event Day threshold, including the day the event
occurred.

11. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON IDENTITY THEFT POLICY AND PROCEDURES
—JO ANDERSON, CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER:

Mrs. Anderson advised that as part of KPUB’s Identity Theft Prevention Program, the Customer
Service Department verifies a customer’s identity by running an ONLINE Information Utility Exchange
report. For that purpose, KPUB has had an agreement in place with ONLINE Information Services since
October of 2008. During the last twelve months, KPUB has processed 2,236 identity verification checks
with zero issues. The total cost including monthly fees was $4,420.95. The Identify Theft Committee met
on November 11, 2019 to review the Identity theft Prevention Policies and Procedures. Based on that
review, there is no recommendation for any changes to the existing program.

Mr. Stacy motioned for approval to continue under the current policy and procedures. Mr. Cowden
seconded the motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 5 — 0.

12. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN PAYMENTS
FOR FY 2019 - TAMMYE RILEY, HR. MANAGER:

Ms. Riley reviewed the spreadsheet submitted summarizing the results and proposed payout for
each department for the FYE 2019 Employee Incentive Plan. She advised this is the sixth year for the
employee incentive plan to be implemented. All forty-three eligible employees have qualified to receive
incentive pay for the fiscal year. Two have been promoted or transferred from an eligible position to another
eligible position and will receive a combination of the payments for which they are eligible, prorated
according to time spent in each position during the Plan Year. Mr. Cowden moved to approve the Employee
Incentive Plan payments as recommended. Mr. Stacy seconded the motion. Vote was by a show of hands.
Motion carried 5 — 0.

13. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PLAN PAYMENTS
FORFY 2019 — MIKE WITTLER, CEO:

Mr. Wittler reviewed the spreadsheet submitted summarizing the results and proposed payout for
the FYE 2019 Management Incentive Plan. Mr. Stacy moved to approve the Management Incentive Plan
payments as recommended. Mr. Cowden seconded the motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion
carried 5 — 0.

14. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON REVISION ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
RATE — MIKE WITTLER, CEO:

Mr. Wittler advised that staff has been in contact with the organization redeveloping the Arcadia
Theater since May 2019 to determine if their project will be eligible for the KPUB Economic Development

Page 3 of 4

&)




Rate. The new Economic Development Rate that was approved last year was intended to support expansion
of primary jobs, significant electric load additions, and development of the Kerrville TIRZ District. As it is
currently written, the rate requires customers to be open to the public at least four days per week including
at least one day on the weekend and until at least 8:00 pm each day the business is open. The theater will
probably not meet this requirement, but its impact to the downtown area is likely to be much more significant
than typical retail, arts, and entertainment businesses in the area. Staff recommended approval of Resolution
No. 19-21, requesting that this requirement be revised as shown in the attached redlined document to allow
the Board more flexibility in determining the impact of a potential customers and their eligibility for the
Economic Development Rate.

Mayor Bill Blackburn motioned for approval of Resolution No. 19-21. Mr. Stacy seconded the
motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 5 — 0.

15. MOTION AND VOTE TO RECESS THE PUBLIC MEETING AND RECONVENE IN AN
EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION:

L EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION — COMPETITIVE MATTERS:

In accordance with Texas Statutes Subchapter D, chapter 551, Government Code Section
§551.086, the Kerrville Public Utility Board will recess to discuss and take any necessary
action on the following “Competitive Matters”:

A. Effective Fuel and Purchased Power Agreements and Fuel Transportation
Arrangements and Contracts;

0" Consideration and Action on Wholesale Purchase Power Contracts —
Mike Wittler, CEO:

Chairman Gamble asked the Board of Trustees if he had a motion that the Board convene in
Executive Closed Session to discuss “Competitive Matters™ in accordance with Texas Statues Subchapter
D, Chapter 551, Government Code Section §551.086. Mr. Cowden so moved. Mr. Stacy seconded the
motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 5 — 0.

The Board entered Executive Closed Session at 9:20 a.m. Chairman Gamble adjourned the
Executive Closed Session and reconvened into Open Session at 9:33 a.m.

12. ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Gamble adjourned the Regular Board Meeting at 9:33 a.m.

Date Approved:

Fred Gamble, Chairman

ATTEST

Lidia S. Goldthorn, Assistant Secretary to the Board
Page 4 of' 4

@




TO:

MEMORANDUM

Fred Gamble

Bill Thomas

Philip Stacy

Mark Cowden

Mayor Bill Blackburn

FROM: Jill Sadberry

DATE:

December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Agenda ltem #6 - Resolution No. 19-22

Presented for your review, wire transfers for operating expenses.

L.

WIRE TRANSFERS - Operating Expense

ERCOT-CRR Auction Invoice
Paid November 20, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to ERCOT.

ERCOT-CRR Auction Invoice
Paid December 11, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to ERCOT.

LCRA - Power Cost Billing 10/01/2019 to 10/31/2019
Paid November 29, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to LCRA.

CPS ENERGY - Power Cost Billing 10/01/2019 to 10/31/2019.
Paid November 22, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to CPS ENERGY.

NEXTERA - Power Cost Billing 10/01/2019 to 10/31/2019.
Paid November 20, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to NEXTERA.

CITY OF GARLAND - Power Cost Billing 10/01/2019 to 10/31/2019.

Paid November 29, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to CITY OF GARLAND.

3,097.47

76,832.43

523,859.37

957,868.95

485,088.00

309,238.72

6




1L

I11.

IV.

DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC - Power Cost Billing 07/01/219 to 07/31/2019.
Paid December 10, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC. $ 8,510.23

DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC - Power Cost Billing 08/01/219 to 08/31/2019.
Paid December 10, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC. $ 10,559.09

DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC - Power Cost Billing 09/01/219 to 09/30/2019.
Paid November 25, 2019 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC. $ 53,065.23

CENTENNIAL BANK — Transfer from TexPool to Centennial Bank.
Paid December 22, 2019. $ 500,000.00

WIRE TRANSFERS — Investments

A. Transfer from Centennial Bank Revenue Fund to TexPool Investment Fund:
Date Principal
November 18,2019 $ 200,000.00
November 22,2019 300,000.00
December 02, 2019 500,000.00
December 06, 2019 300,000.00
December 09, 2019 400,000.00

WIRE TRANSFERS - Payroll

Automated Clearing House for Pay Periods Ending:

November 15, 2019 $ 103,666.70
November 27, 2019 - EIP/MIP $ 51,837.31
November 29, 2019 $ 112,587.42
WIRE TRANSFERS - Payroll - Federal Reserve Bank
Federal Withholding and FICA for Period Ending:
November 15, 2019 $ 34,784.43
November 27, 2019 - EIP/MIP $ 26,775.25
November 29, 2019 $ 37,576.67
WIRE TRANSFER - Comptroller of Public Accounts
2019 - Sales and Use Tax — Paid 12/06/2019 $ 72,264.37

(6)




VI.  WIRE TRANSFER - TMRS and TML

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Retirement Plan Contribution
for the month of November — Paid 12/06/2019 $ 113.533.32

Texas Municipal League (TML)
Monthly Premium - Medical, Dental, Vision and Life
for the month of November — Paid 12/09/2019 $ 54,962.04

If you have any questions on the items presented for payment, I will be happy to answer them at

your convenience.

ill Sadberry
Chief Financial Officer

Sincerely,

(7)



RESOLUTION NO. 19-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD CONFIRMING AND
AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENTS OF INVOICES AS APPROVED AND PRESENTED BY
THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND GENERAL MANAGER / CEO.

WHEREAS, the providers of services or material have submitted invoices for payment;
and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer or General Manager/CEO has reviewed the invoices
and approved payments for services rendered or material received.

WHEREAS, the items marked “Paid” have been previously approved by the Board and are
included in this Resolution for information; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD THAT:

Section 1. That the Kerrville Public Utility Board review payment of the items set forth on
the preceding Schedule.

Section 2. That the Kerrville Public Utility Board instructs the General Manager/CEO or
his designee to make said payments and ratifies the payment of the items marked “Paid.”

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 18" day of December, 2019

Fred Gamble, Chairman
ATTEST:

Philip Stacy, Secretary

®)




MEMORANDUM

To: Fred Gamble
Bill Thomas
Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Jill Sadberry
Date: December 10, 2019
Re: Agenda Item No. 7 — Resolution No. 19-23

Resolution No. 19-23 is presented for your consideration. This Resolution is a statement
that confirms action taken by the Utility Board and makes an Open Meeting statement on
the matters of authorized Bankers and Dealers.

This authorization is an annual requirement for our investment services under current
Texas Statutes.

Sincerely,

O dodoony”

Jill Sadberry

9



RESOLUTION NO. 19-23

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD APPROVING THE
AUTHORIZED BROKERS AND DEALERS FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES FOR THE
SYSTEM.

WHEREAS, The Kerrville Public Utility Board has approved and executed agreements with
Hilltop Securities, Inc., Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC), and TexPool for
investment services; and

WHEREAS, the Kerrville Public Utility Board wishes to continue the relationship with
Hilltop Securities, Inc., LOGIC, and TexPool; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD THAT:

Section 1. The Kerrville Public Utility Board approves Hilltop Securities, Inc., LOGIC, and
TexPool as the Board’s official authorized Brokers and Dealers.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage for a
period of one year from the approval date.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 18 day of December, 2019

Fred Gamble, Chairman
ATTEST:

Philip Stacy, Secretary

10)




MEMORANDUM

To: Fred Gamble
Bill Thomas
Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Jill Sadberry
Date: December 10, 2019
Re: Agenda Item No. 8 — Financial Report

Operating income for the month of November is $44,204.16, which is above budget by
$32,440.69. Net income for the month is $83,899.69, which is above budget by
$24,864.69. Year to date operating income is above budget by $545,608.74 and net income
is above budget by $538,846.10.

For the year, kWh sales are above budget by 15,827,662 kWhs, or by 22.86%.

At November 30, 2019, operating expenses, excluding power cost, are below budget by
$89,067.44 or by 4.64%.

The balance in the over collected power cost at November 30, 2019 was $2,613,751.49.
The balance in the Rate Stabilization Fund is $1,887,324.34.

Debt service coverage for November is 9.01. The coverage factor for the fiscal year is
15.21.

Sincerely,

Jill Sadberry
Chief Financial Officer

an




$9T°ST

96°E86°LLB’S9

£ 4 A

28 0LE'ZEV'89

%68 1T~ (86 €GL ET) 0P 089 °'STT %25°8 28°966°L 00 006 '€E6 28°968°10T
%GV 8ST S6°26%‘22 SSTS6T VI %59 ° LOE 0S°889°LE 00°000°6 05°889°9¢
16°6¥9 'TIVP S9 Sy'6L9'EIV 8D
%22°68- (1z°688°€8Y) 06°88L"°LIS LA 69°V98'PE 00°SEO’'6S 69°668°¢€8
%50° 0~ (16°02) Yy 9TL’'6E BE0 9T~ (LY SLS'L) 00°TLZ LY £5°G69'6E
SELTLIT- €0°2Z¥8'Z (86 EIV'2) %687 06— (s6-1TLZ' W) 00°00L'Y¥ S0 82V
%88°ve V0 8LS EV'EZE'T %90°91 LY TO0¥ 00°00S8‘¢2 LY 106°2
BEV S~ ESTEVY (80°658°TT) %00°0 SV 0 (00°912'1T) (s sT2'11)
= 00°000°ST %00°0 - 00°000°ST 00°000°ST

%29 8T~ (E1"22) 65S°ZV1 %58 vL- (¥s " 8SE) 00°6LY 9y 021
SCT 1T~ (8E"290'¥) 8V °€25'9¢€ $GE 6~ (06" 9YE'E) 00°808°SE 0T " 19¥%’zZE
%E9° 16~ (0E"898°€8Y) 9V °ZLO'BZS $9L°SLT 9T OFY'ZE 00" POL'TT 9T V0T vy
$IL"S 05" 68 ESBT LZ IEZ'LIZ’'E %0¥ 0T LL P62’ 0ZE 00°98L°080°E LL 0BO'TOV'E
%6L E98 (L6°€2879) (00°06L) %¥6°LET (L6 ETV’'¥) (00" 002’€) (L6 €ET9'L)
L3110 74 28'LEZ6'SS oL V6L LZE %991~ (8y LLL'¥) 00° 005’882 25 2ZZL'EBE
$IS°V 90°'66 GLTLET'EZ VT 0- (61 €) 00°00E‘Z 18°962°¢
%2E’B 0E"90L’'92 L9°088°0ZE %G8°L L6°98Z'SE 00" 00E’22E L6°98S'LVE
%60°VE BE'LZE'E 80 19L'6 %0L° 16~ (PSS TTO'PT) 00°00T°LZ 9% '880°¢€T
%06 " CE- (z6°622°62) E¥ 1€8°88 %62 °9- (67°866'€) 00°009°€E9 IS° 109’68
%9T° 1S S9°9LL'PIT 0z 19e’'vZe V8 62 S8°SE6’LL 00-zoz'192 S8°LET'6EE
%T8°0 8T1°990°6T VY VeI VYE'Z $ES°TT zo'oLz'vre 00°'¥86°8TT'2 29°092°€9€’T
%T0°8- (08'8T0°00€) ELEOE'SYL'E $IV'IT €6 FEL'ZSE 00°0SS°260°€E E6°VBZ'SPY'E
%87 1E- (TS T¥9'1T) E€L°086'9€ %6L TE- (8L°018'1T) 00°0ST'LE ZZ 6EE’'ST
$ZT°6LS 86°628°6T 9T ¥ev'E %S0°T- (98°5¥2) 00°00S8‘E2 Y1 vSZET
%25 L- (957055'92T) 00°S6L'189°T %86°S ¥V 0Z8°L8 00" PEF LOF'T L4 A 4 T A=
%86 8- (tL"959'18T) V8 E0T'E20’C %0L°LT €T TIL6'9LZ 00°9LY P9S°T ET LYP'IPB'T

(o=q) (eseaxneq) Junowy (oeq) (esesxoeq) Junomy YyjuoK

our 2sEaIDUT Iee) 3s5e] our 25E8IDUT 3ebpng JjuaIand

% YIUOW FuLIIND % YIUuoK JIuSIIND

ey jseT o3 uostaedmo)

3ebpng o3 uostaedmop

(QELIanNYNn)

6102 ’'0f T=2quWeArON
sbutuzeg peutejlsy ut sebuey) pue sesusdxy ‘senusasy JO FJUSWOREIS

paeog A3TTTIN OTIANd STTTAIISY

enueaassy butjezadp o3 Swooul jeM IO JusSOID

HINOW J0 ONE IV SONINGVE JEINIVILEY

TeToeds - I@FSURIL PUNg TeIsusd :SSOT
zenbayg - I9FsSuex] pung TeEIsUSH SSDT
3JBUC) IO PIY UT SUCTINGTIFUOD SOT4

HINOW 0 ONINMIDIE IV¥ SONINGVE JENIVLEY

(SSOT) THOONI IEN

¢ (SESHEAXE) SENNIATY ONIIVEEIONON TYLOL
3su - I8Y30
Spung pemoIIcd - DANIY
ssuadxg j3seIxejul
eTTTaTIey Fo L3TD-DUl 3Isexejul
pung saresey
pung Buryuils ¥ 3Isexejul
Biswyg ‘I35U0)’pung enusasy
: (SESHEAXT) SIENNIATE DNIIVEIJOMOH

FHOONI ONILWHIALO

SEHSNAdXE ONIIVEEd0 TYLOL
Eeiele]
uotjeToaxdsqg
wexbul - seeg SSTYDURIF
sesuadxy SATIEIJSTUTWURY
TEUOTIBPWIOIUT § SOTATSS ISWOISND
Butjunoooy Iswo3lsnd
UoTINATIFSTA

Tamog peseyoIng
:SESNIINT ONILYEII0

SHONEATY SNILVYEdO TYLOL
IaYy3io
s8T3TIOU3NY OTTgqnd 03 seTEeEs
TeTI3SNpUl /TRTOISUmMOD
TeTjuapIsay

:SEHNNIATY INILYEEd0

(12)



%8V °GT

96" €86°LLB'S9

%8E°0T

Z8 0LE’'2EV’89

00°000°0S - %68°8 00°080°V 00°026°SY 00°000’0S
%L6° G- (82°9V9 €ET) €L°GVS822 %62 VT SV 66L°9C 00°00T/88T Sv°668°Y1Z
%cC av ZE'9BLLT Y0 TEE'6E $ZELTIZ 9E LIT'6E 00°000'8T 9€"LTIT’LS
Z6°CE9'886°' V9 T8 TIBL'6V6'LY
%66 GE- (€9°v6T'88¢E) €L°G9G'8L0’'T %29 'GS€ 0T 9V8'8ES 00°G2S'TIST 0T TLE'069
$TE'E 81°88L'C 8T°8VE‘V8 %02" L~ (v9°29L°9) 00°668°€6 9£°9€T’ L8
$ZE"9VT~ 61°6L8°C (L9 L96'T) %0€° 06~ (8v°'88V’'8) 00°00V‘6 2S° 116
%GL'22 0Z°vZ0’T 2y T0S'V $T1S°0T 29°4629 00°000°S z29°625°'S
%EQ "V~ 22°696 (68 EV0‘VT) %00°0 LE'O (00°SLO“€E2) (€9°VLO'€2)
- 00°000°0€ %$00°0 - 00°000‘0€ 00°000°0€E
$TT°9 0E'EV LT 60L %612~ (€S°502) 007856 LY 2SL
%€8 " T~ (EL"LZT'Q) TT 6VI’GL %96°T 8E°GOV’'T 00°919°TL 8€ TZO'EL
%EE 6E- (18°286°06€) GG LTIZ V66 2T18°9%6 vL°809°GVS 00°929°LS YL vEZ €09
$9T°T 86°LZV'69 20°2TIS'SL6’S $CS T~ (00" €65€6) 00°€ES'BET’9 00°0¥6°¥v0°9
$0€ " T9L (LG LT6L) (00°0v0’'T) %96 " 6E (LG LSS’ ?) (00°00%’9) (LS LS56'8)
%0V ve 8E T6S 0TT v9 " LZZ'ESY %022~ (86°089°2T) 00°00S°9LS 20°618'€9S
%L8° L V1 8SE 82°8VS’'V %99°9 CV ' 90€E 00°009°V Zr°-906°'V
%9L'S €S TE0'TE 98 LT98ES $ZV"1T- (T19°0SV'EL) 00°00T’EV9 6E°6V9’'69S
$V<¢ 99 L9°8T9°2T veE-gey’ee $TZ " GE- (66°GV0'6T) 00°00T’'¥S TO $S0’SE
%€6°8Z~ (€8°890'0V) €6 "96V'8ET %8€°22- (06°TLE'82) 00°008’921 0T°82V'86
%E6 OV v9° €25/ 18T GG °ZT8'98E %968 6T EEL/ IV 00°€09°'12S 6T 9€E‘ 89S
%E6 " U~ (86°80L°812) ZVETV/ZEV'Y $TT 0~ (96°625'V) 00 0£Z‘8TIZ’Y v vOL'ETC’Y
$T9 V- (€8°¥SS'12€E) LS 62L'696°9 $0€°L YL GT0’2SY 00°6ST‘96T’9 YL BLT'8Y9’9
%05 8vT~ (TO'SLO’6TT) 2981’08 $G€°2ST- (6E°Z6T'ETT) 00°00€E’ VL (6€£°268' 8E)
%00 L8S GG VL9 ‘6E 28°86L’9 %IC "1~ (€9°999) 00°000°'LY LE"EEV’9Y
%L.8° 8~ (TP 185°L82Z) ST 8Y9'TVZ’'E $€6°T VL v86’SS 00°280'868°C vL°990°Y56°'¢C
%GC°T Yo" LTV SV 86 '6€T'TV9’'E %$50°9T 20°06L°60S 00" LLL'9LT’E 20°L9G‘989°€E
(oad) (eseaxda() JUnoOWY (ooq) (oseaxoa() JUNOWY °3eQq
our oseazour Ie9x 3serq our oseaxdul 3obpndg o3 aeax
% o23eq o3 Ieax % o3eq 03 Ieax

zeax 3seT o3 uosTtIredwod

sbutuzey peutejay uT sobueypn pue sosusdxyg ‘SONUOADY FO JUSWSIEIS
pxeog A3TTTIN OTIRd STTTAIIDY

qjobpng 03 uostaedwod

(QELIAOYND)

6T0C ‘0E ISqWOAON

onusady burjeradp 03 SwoOUI 3ION FJO JUIDIBDG

YyEX JO GNE IV SONINGYE qENIVIETI

Tetoeds - I9FSueI] pung TeISUSD 669

zeTnboy - I9FsURI] Pungd TeIDdUSD EEIT

35uU0) FO PIV UT SUOTINGTIJUOD :6NTd
WYAX J0 ONINNIOHE LV SONINIVE QEANIVLEI

(SSOT) FWODNI LEN

: (SESNAAXE) SHEANTFATY ONILWIIAONON THLOL

3ou - I9Y30
spung pomMorxoy - jolainX:p-4
asuadxyg jssa23uUr
STTTaZI=2Y JO A3TD-OUI 3E9IIIUT
pung sAI9s9d
pung BuTyurs 3 3S9ASIUI
pung enuaasdy
: (SESNIAXE) SHANIAHY ONIIWIEJONON

TAOONI ONILWIFA0

SESNAAXT ONILVIId0 TWIOL
I2Y3o
uotjeroaxdeq
wexbuy - so9g osTYOURIJ
sosuadxy SATIRIISTUTUPY

IeUOCTIEMIOFUI ¥ DOTAIDS ISWORSND

HUT3UNOODY IBWOISND
uoTINgTIIS TA

Iomog pOseyDdInd

: SESNAAXE ONILYIHR4O

SEANIATY ONIIVIRJO TYLOL
I|y3lo
§3T3TIOYINY OTTORd O3 SOTES
TeTI3SNPUL/TeToIsWmuo)
TETIUSP TS

PSHEONFARY ONILYIIA0

(13)




91" 661 'ESE'ER

0v'2ZLS'ETE‘EB

00 PEV'EST'T

00°PEV'ESZ'T

SE'EBG'BYT VT

BL LIL'LZY'ET

26 LLI'6VS'S

22 Z8Z'ELY'S

Z6'E60°0PE’T
LO'6EB'66T'T
E6°PVL'600°T

6y ISL'ET9'E
§5°809'90L
8T'226'ES1'2

£V 9VL €86 95°926 '6E6
T0° TSP’ 2ES 10 TTL LS
2V S62°6S §5°6T2 1T

00" 000’ Z6E 00°000'T0V

00°655'519'L

00° 656 FIZ L

00°6SS'VES'E

00" 655 'WES'E

00°000°180" ¥

T8 IBL'6V6'LY

00°000°089'€E

Z9°0LE'ZEY' 89

T8 T8L'6WE’ LI

29 OLE'ZEV'8BY

TE3OL

UOTSUSI-SBDIN0CERY JO SAOTIUI paxIsgzed
s3Tpean peazazed

SOTITITAETI TRIOL

saey [(py 3500 I8mog JO UOTIOSTTOD ISAD

§,qeTT PenIDOY pue aTqeied S3IUNODDY

szatTddng aesmog - a7qeleg sjuncooy
1SBTITITIRTT IUSIIND

s3tsodeg Iswojlsnd
pung pucg £10Z @1qefeg sjunoooy
aTqelesd 3sexejul PenIoOOY
SpuUoH enueAsy E£T0Z IO UCTIIOL JUSIAND
183985y POI0TILSSY WOIF

sTqeles SOTITTTAETI IUSIIND

3qeq mxal-HuoT TEloL
ATTIqRTT UOTSURE

abreys Burpungey peszTlIoWwEUf SSBT
wnTweid peITiIoweun  (SOnId
uoTIIO JUBIIND IO I8N
spucyg snuaAsd £T0Z
13geq mIer-5Suog
ISRTITITqeETI

A3tnbz TE30L

paazssazun - sbutuzex pauteldy
1Ry tobg

9T°661'2SE'ES

0y ZLG'ETE'ES

00°000°005°L
€S 0SP'SEL'T

00°000°00S°L
ES°0GV'SEL'T

TE'EGT'65E"22

EL9LD'60E'ET

0S°LYD 168
£0°L62'TST T
69°122'6LZ'Y

0T"6L3'0ED'T
BT IFD'62T'T
vE PZS 692V

66 9€G'LST 66°9E5'LST
00°000°0¥S 8Y 0G5’ 0VS
00°000°0PS BY 055 0PS

GE'ZO¥'S88°T

vE'PZE'LBE'T

SE'ZOV'S88°T

vE'PIE’LBE'T

TI"085'TL9'T

LL P25 E06'T

0T°005°999'1
T0°020°S

08°68v'868°2
L6 VEQ'S

v9° LT EBL'TT

£5°568"06E'0T

TL 1BV BOV'TT
£6°589 'VLE

LO" 020’6166
9p 5L8’ ILY

By L6B'VEV'Y

26°L60 680"V

LY 95V 956 '€

16 98E°T9S'€

00 ESO'ETS'E

€2 VER'ITIS'E

LY EODEVY B9 ZEL VY
TO TVY'BES TO'TIL LES
TO TVY'BES TO'TIL LES

v8' L5922 9

22T LY6'6L9 "9V

EB PSS vOC'Y
TO'E0T'850'EY

§9°2ST°292'V
LS PEL' LTV EY

(68°€ET6 T1S BE)
06°910'0L5'08

(EE "8EV' 090 6E)
06°ZET'8BLY T8

Te30L
e[TTAZI®Y FO A3TD 03 SOURAPY
S90INOESY JO MOTIIND pexIezeg
£31qeQ PeIaisq

S3VSSY JUSIIND TeIOL
. 18430
sotTddns pue STETISIEH
seoueHMoTTV 3O 32N
‘BTOEATEORY SIUNOIDY IBWOISTD

SPUnd UOTIONY WED LODHEE

pung UOTIBZTTIQEIS =389 "I°T1 TE=30L
S3UBI} SBAUL
sjuaTeatnby ysed pue ysed
TPUnd UOTIBVETTTIQEIS ¥3¥H "I°1

pung UCTIBITITAEIS S3¥d TEIOL
SJUSWY SSAUT
sjusTeatnby ysel pue ysed

:pung UOTIEZTITAEIS @3®d

pUng uoTISNIISUC] TEIOL
sjuauy SeAUl
sjuereatnbd yse) pue ysed
IpUng UOTIONIISUOD

pung snusasy Te30L
s3tsodeg Iewo3sn) SS9T - SIUSURSIAUL
sjusTeatnby ysed pue ysed
Ipung enusasy
1 8388SY JUSIIND

3955y PajoTIfEey TEI0L

sjusw}SaAUT TRIOL

pung Butjuon ‘soerdey ‘xredey 'Aousbzewy

pung Burjuts pue 3seIsjul
PpuUng UOTIONIAZSUOD PUCH £102
{ SJUSW] SBAUT

sjusTeatnby Ysed pue ysed TEIOL
s3tsodeq IWO3sSND
:sjusTeaTnbE Ysed pue ysed
183988y PO3OTIASEY

JueTd A3TTITIA I8N
sgazboxg UT YIOM UOTIOOIISUOD

uot3jeTosaxdeg Pe3ERTNUNCOY (S597
|8o0TAI®S UT JUETd DTIF0STI
rjuweTd AITTTIN

6102 ‘T I9q0300

(p@3Tpneun)

6102 ‘0t IequencN

Aynbg pue SBTITIIQETI

6102 ‘T 38290300

6TI0Z £ QE ISqUaAON
s3i@esys soueTeEg
paeog £3TTTIA OTTANG STTTAIISY

(pe3TPnEUN)

6102 '0f ISqUBAON

s3288Y

(14)



6Z "88E'VEE'6T €Z VE9'9IS’E 687980 ‘EE€T - 8V °0S5‘0vS vE'vZE‘LE8'T ZZ TI8'006°C LT 186°SSE‘OT
- 0SS TIT'61T (0S"TIT'6T)
6Z°88E'VEE'6T €Z°VES'9TS’'E GE"GLE6'ETT - 8V 065 ‘0vS VE PZE'LBB'T 2z 1180062 L9°260°SLE’OT
(9¥ - 925 ‘8Y) (9v 925 8Y)
TE"609°0T TE'609 ‘0T
9% "G9E’T2Z €2°18S'€E 9¥° 02T - 8v° 0SS 66°126'T T8°L96'2C 6V €TT'2T
86 "6€6'0SE'6T 00 €ES0‘ETIS’E 68° VS8 ETT - 00°000‘0¥S GE'ZOv’S88’T TP EV8’LEB T €E°98L‘00V'0T
00°000‘00€ 00000’ 00€E
(00000 00S) (00 000‘00S)
00°000°002 00°000°002
(00°000'00T) (00°000'00T)
00000002 00°000'00¢
00°000‘00€ 00°000'00€
0000000V 0000000V
00000008 00°000°00S
- (08°688) 08688
- (05°v98”8) 05°v98’8
- (05°0V9 ' V) 05°0V9 'Y
(EZ°G90°€S) (€2°S90°€S)
(2L 8EZ’60E) (ZL"8EZ'60E)
(LY "L60'€E) (LY " L60'€E)
(Sv-502'S8) (S¥°S0Z'SB)
(00°880°S8Y) (00" 880'S8Y)
(56 "898’ LS6) (56°898'L56)
(LE 658’'€2G) (LE " 658 ‘€2ZS)
(68 E0€E ' 12) (68°€0E ' T2)
(8L°L09°2V) (8L°L09°2V)
(2T S8€E'VS) (ZT°SBE ' VS)
(0S"PST'E9Y) (05" VST ‘E9D)
9v "vI8'6V0'1IC 00°ESO’'ETIS’'E 6E°600'LLS - 00°000'0VS GE'20V’G88° T 12°8€2°'C16°C TS TIT 229 'TT
po3ssaur pung Asuabutiuo) ¥ pung puni pung pung pung pung
spung ooerdey ‘zteday buTHUIg anzesey  ‘[TelS 9318'Y  UOTIBRZTITQE1S UOTIONIISUC) snuaasy
Te10L ! Rousbasuyg ¥ 3S8a83UT Iqeda wzsyl bBuog 23ed
6T0Z/TT

Y3juo JOo pud 3B ooueTed puni TBIOL

sI9FsURI] PUNIISIUT

z9Fx 3 UOTIROOTTR IUT I93Fe Ted Pund IO

pung S5I 03 §,dD ¥ SIOOR Jueq IF JUT ISIX

6102/22/11
6102/22/11
6T0C/8T/TT
6T02/ST/TT
6T0Z/2T/11
6102/8/1T
6T02/L/TT
6T0Z/T/1T

6T0C/0E/TT
6T0Z/0E/TT
6102/0E/T1

6T02/S2/11
610Z2/62/1T
6T0Z/0Z/11T
6102/9/11
6102/0Z/11
6102/22/11
6102/62/11
6T/T/TT
6T/1/TT
6T/T/TT
6T/T/TT

3O YJUOR 8Yy3 IOoJ SOTITINDDS JUSWUIDAOH UT POISSAUI Spung WOy seouefedg pung FO TTe3lad
pIeog A3TTTIN OTIANd STITAIISN

o) woIZ S5I 03 p8IIsgsuell 3S9IDJUT
(@D uo panIdor) STEATIORY 3152I93UT
{gD uo penivoR) STUERATSOSY 3IS2I9IUI

pung § % I 03 131SSIB3UT JO IDJFSUBRI]

spunj ojeaedes oyjl 03 pouIes JuUT oW

1 JO UOTIROOTTY

juswied 3Ssoaejul X3T1D I9FSuea]

TOOAXHAL
TOOAXHL
TOOdXHL
TOOdXEL
TOOdXEL
T00dxXaL
T00dXHL
TOO4XHAL
TOOdXHEL
: S}UBWESDAUT

oerdey zouxogsuey Aousbiswg juny
oprabdn juswdrnby weibur
speabdn juswdinby unipels

DT IBTOS ISOMYINOS HJI-TOOAXIL
puerIes 3o A3TD-TO0dXIL

LODIA-TO0dX AL
LOD¥E-TOO0dX AL
BITIXON-TOOJXEL

Kbasug $d0-TOOAXIL

Y40T-TO0dXAL

(o2koTdue) SWWIL-TOOdXHEL
(zoKoTdw®) SUWI-TOOdXIL
aouBINSUT TRL-TOOdXHL

jug puog-jued Aespeoag-TOOdXEL
{STEMRIPYITM IO/pUkB SDTITIANIBRW

aoueTedg Y3luol a9yl 3Fo bButuutbeg

(15)




pieog AN 21and oA

9oIMBS g sewnl  G9'L sa21j0Bld Ssauisng poox) o)
pieog gandy Aq pausijqels3 juswalinbay wnwiuly
20INBS Jgeg sewnl  Gg'L JUBUSAOD puog Jad juswalinbay WnWIUI
.91 LZS1L 10’6 oney abeianod 8oIn8s 19970
6€'GEL'€05 vEZEO'E8 SLOSL LY Jojeuiwous(
00'0S.'Z6¢ £€'€80'99 L99LP'Eee an( swAed [edioulld
6E£'G86'0LL LO'6YS'LL 80'7LE'S (suoneziuowe jo jau) esuadxg jsaleiy|
A8 d3aIAId
GE'GEG VEY'S cL6EL' 1T )L 62 9€6'G.E lojesownN

- - SUOIJBZILOWY SNOBUE|[SoSI
- - Juawisnlpy uonisinboy Jo uoeziowy

/8'709'LGE'S Z0'6L8'€9S z5'zeL'ese asuadx3 uoneaideg
6£'G86'0LL LO6PS'LL 80'7LE'8 (Dan4y % suonezipowe Jo jou) asuadx3 jsas8u|
sn|d
60SY6'LL6'Y $  OLLIE069 $  69668€E8 S awoou| }1oN
SUIUO\ @A1aM | I=ETN YIUuoW uonduosaqg
snoirald |eosi4 uaungd

6102 ‘0€ J9qWISAON Papu3 Yjuop ayj 104
abesanon 991A198 3gaQ 9je( 0} Jea) pue Ajyjuoly ayj jo uoneindwod
pieog AN 21qnd 3JIALISY

(16)



MEMORANDUM

To: Fred Gamble
Bill Thomas
Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Mayor Bill Blackburn

From: Howard Hall
Date: December 12, 2019
Re: Agenda Item No. 9 — Approval and Reporting of Purchases and Sales

Presented for your consideration and review are the recommendations for purchase of
goods or services.

A. Fleet Purchase. Staff is recommending the approval of a purchase order to
Altec, Inc. for a total of $159,889.00 to purchase a 2020 Ford F-550 bucket
truck. Truck specifications meet those of the Texas Multiple Award Schedule
(TXMAS) which is a cooperative purchasing program through the Texas
Comptroller of Public Accounts designed to meet statutory competitive
procurement requirements. This unit will replace Unit 3236 2014 Dodge 5500
Bucket Truck with over 100,000 miles and close to 4000 hours. A total of
$180,000.00 was budgeted for this purchase.

B. Fleet Sale. The following vehicle was auctioned and sold thru JJ Kane
Auctioneers. Unit 3206, 2006 F-150 4X4 Pick Up for $4,275. The amount

mentioned is the price after the auctioneer percentage was deducted from
the sale price.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

owmorHiadl

Howard Hall

17)




MEMORANDUM

To: Fred Gamble
Bill Thomas
Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Mayor Bill Blackburn

From: Mike Wittler

Date: December 12, 2019

Re: Agenda Item 10 — Consideration and Action on Employee Incentive Plan
for FY 2020

Attached is the draft Employee Incentive Plan (EIP) for FY 2020. If approved by the
Board, this will be the seventh year of the EIP for non-management personnel. Each
employee would again be eligible for up to 3.0% of their annual base salary depending on
goal achievement. The goals have been revised based on department needs, the goal
attainment for the FY 2019 EIP and historical performance.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

# 7

Mike Wittler, P.E.

(18)




FY 2020 EMPLOYEE December 18, 2019
INCENTIVE PLAN

KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN
FISCAL YEAR 2020

Supersedes all prior Employee Annual Incentive Plans

Plan Objectives

The purpose of this Plan is to provide additional motivation and incentive for non-
management employees of KPUB to achieve or exceed the Company’s goals and
objectives for the fiscal year; to establish objectively verifiable measures of performance
for positions eligible under the Plan; and to foster teamwork among nonexempt employees
in attaining the Company’s strategic plans.

Plan Year

The Plan Year for this Plan begins on October 1, and ends on September 30, coinciding
with KPUB’s fiscal year.

Plan Administration

The Personnel Committee (Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and General Manager) shall review
the Plan annually and recommend changes, if any, to the Plan for adoption by the Board of
Trustees. The Personnel Committee shall ensure the Plan represents the appropriate levels
of accomplishment consistent with the Company’s historical performance, strategic goals,
operating environment and stewardship responsibility. The Board of Trustees may modify
or terminate this Plan or any provision herein at its discretion.

The Board will endeavor to make any adjustments to this Plan as soon as possible after the
beginning of each fiscal year.

Positions Eligible for Participation

All KPUB employees not covered by the Management Incentive Plan are eligible to
participate in this Plan. Occupants of these positions must be full-time employees on the
payroll on the day the Board of Trustees approves payment of the annual incentives under
the Plan. An otherwise-eligible participant will be rendered ineligible for any payments
under this Plan if, within the six months preceding the last day of the Plan Year, s/he has
received a disciplinary notice advising that his/her employment is in jeopardy.

Approved by the Board on Approved by the Personnel Committee on

(19)




Pro Rata Awards

If an individual is promoted or transferred from an eligible position to another eligible
position, the Incentive Plan payment will be a combination of the payments for which s/he
is eligible, prorated according to time spent in each position during the Plan Year.
Employees who start their employment or take an unpaid leave of absence during the Plan
Year will receive a prorated award based on the number of full months that they were paid
for. Should an individual be demoted during a Plan Year, his/her eligibility for an Incentive
Plan payment, if any, and the amount of the payment will be determined by the General
Manager/CEOQ in his discretion.

Goals/Performance Factors

An individual’s entitlement to an Incentive Plan payment will be measured by the
individual’s departmental or individual goals. The calculated percentage to which an
individual will be entitled under the Incentive Plan will be multiplied by the maximum
Incentive Plan payment to which the individual is entitled, by department. The maximum
Incentive Plan payment for which an individual is eligible is 3.0% of their base pay,
(excluding overtime and shift differential).

Each goal listed for a department is assigned a weight to reflect the importance of the goal
to the individual’s overall performance, with the combined weight-ratings totaling 100%.
The achievement level of each goal will also be measured against a Target level of
achievement, a Threshold (below-Target) level, and an outstanding (above-Target) level.
An individual who meets Target with respect to a particular goal will receive the full weight
assigned to that goal. An individual who achieves only the Threshold for that goal will
receive half the weight assigned to the goal, and an individual who achieves Outstanding
results will receive one-and-one-half times the weight assigned to the goal. Payout at the
Outstanding achievement level can only be used to make up for goals that do not meet the
Target level, i.e. an individual cannot be awarded more than the maximum percentage of
their annual base pay. Unless specifically noted for a goal, there is no prorating between
the Threshold and Target or the Target and Outstanding achievement levels. No weight
will be given for performance below the Threshold level for a goal. An individual who has
not met Threshold level cannot meet Target level, and an individual who has not met
Threshold and Target levels cannot meet Outstanding level.

Schedule for Payments Under Plan

Incentive Plan payments will be made to all eligible participants as soon as practicable
following the end of the fiscal year.

Publication of Plan

Upon the Board’s adoption of this Plan each fiscal year, including any adjustments thereto,
the Plan will be posted on the employee bulletin boards, located in each building.

Approved by the Board on Approved by the Personnel Committee on

(20)




Emplovment Not Affected

Nothing in this Plan shall be deemed to confer on any employee a right of continued
employment or affect the right of KPUB to terminate the employment of any employee at
any time, with or without cause or prior notice.

Approved by the Board on Approved by the Personnel Committee on

1)




34 Aq suonepuslwwiossy € JAd Aq SUCHEPUBLILICDSY T I A4 Aq UolepuaLULLIcDaY | %Sl €l (1209 |ENPIAIPU]) SUDHEPUSWILLODSY Juswanosdw| $89201d ¥sD
= SjUnoaoY
%812 %emR %5 %S| BAOY 10} 9j14 UD SBssaIppY |IBWT jo afejusdlad asealou) HSO
SJaWOISND 000S< SIaWolsN) 0St= SIAWDISND 00St< WGl sisLoIsN) YeiQ yueg jo Jaquuny |ejo) asealdu| HS0
[Bj0L 65€ J0O) [el0 L PET J0j SHUNOIDY leyol 602
nosoy pledaid jo Jaquinpy asealsy
siunocoy piedaid MON GZZ PP Pledaid MaN 0SL PPY 0} SJUnoooy pledaid MaN S PRY st Flina3oy! predeidl o dsquine ! i
0085< 0066=< 00Z6< %51 SIUNCI0Y BAIDY U s|ig ssajiaded aseanu) HSD
%0'Z ueL) sse %E°Z UBY) 5597 %9'Z LBy} 5587 %G1 (Buie)s [Ind yum sjieD passiyy) ssauansuodsay auoydsja) S0
iea ), aNnNOasuol) i
PUZ IO} SJUBPIoOY BUW | 1507 ON SIUBPIoYY SWll 1507 ON WiN %01 i sjuapiooy awi| jso ‘Alsjes ¥S0
wuow Bumaolio)
0zoz/oz/L Aq 0202/02/Z Aq ozoziozie fa %0E 10 U0z Aq paisiduios Auspusdspu] LOREIIDUCOSY YUBR Wa|J dY
ozoz/iie fa 0zoz/LIL Aq ozoz/1/g kq %02 [enuey ainpadtld saiing qof ajlipn 3910 dY
L€ Jeqoo0 Aq wewebeueyy sJolpny 8y}
0} Sjgejlens UoliELLIojUl Ui SBIYNoLyIp Jo sjuswasiBesip
sl ype ol Buousiajel 'sjuswysnipe  ueoyiubis ou yim Jsuuew Aswiy %0€ HERY [BRULY HRAD oV
Hpne weayubis oN e Ul pasedasd sjeaysyIom Jpny
Req yiopn fed Rom feg iuow 80 dv
pig jo UCON Ag UOISSILGNS Uy JO UOON AQ LDISSILUGNS  IOAA UIG Jo LIoON Aq uoissiwans %0l yoe3 Jo Ae@ YoM Uiy A papiwang sjeioueuld yeiq isild
JB8 A BAN0SSUDD y
pUZ JO} SWUBpIooY BW| 1soT o T oPioo SUILLISOTON VN %0b L Sjuspiooy awiy 1507 :Majes W20 dv
Jeak Jad sioua G| > Jeak 1ad sioua 0> Jeak jad sious gZ> %0z Korinooy uewsBetmy usodeg sy Buiitinoaay]
Jeak Jad sioua Z > Jeah Jad siols € > Jeaf Jad sioue g > %oz I 301D BURUNCIoY]
1€ 480300 Aq Juawebeuepy siopny ey}
0} S|gEJIEAR UONBLLDJUL UM S2Inouip 1o sjuaiuaaibesip
Slslsnips ypre oN Burualsjel ‘suswysnipe juesyubls ou yum Jeuuew Aaw %0E Upny [ENULY 9D Bugunoday
ypne jueayubis o & U pasedaid sisaysyiom upny
Aeq@ iom Aeq oM Aeq Lo
1ay0) Buiu
PIE JO UOON Aq UOISSIIGNS Ui JO UCON Aq LDISSIUGNS 3O WIS JO UOON Aq uoissiuigng %0z yoes] Jo Ao MIOM Uik Aq PERILIGNS S[EOUBULY YRI] 1814 0 buunesay
Jea A BANO3SU0D ;
puZ Joj 3w 1507 ON Slaprooy GullL 1507 ON YN %01 b SiuepIoY Wi 1507 K1ajes %810 Buiunoooy
| T YT WBleM ___o1oN 1209 d9q / uonisod

(22)



Sa.njes) pajosuue? pue Juswdinbs Junow

siapas) %/9 Joj s@dwon sjapaaj Jo 906 ajeidwon 51apea) Jo %GE Slejdwon o%40p ped ‘sajod ‘sjutod S0IISS 10} SUONESO| [BEdSOBB PBLIOD Bunsauifiug
Y : ; (juswdinbs junow ped pue 'youal) 'sisuLIOjSUBRS Spnfoul
0Z0Z ‘| fuerugad Aq pajejdwon  0Z0Z 'L udy Aq pajsidwol 0zZ0Z ‘'L Minr Aq paejdwo) %GZ o) SUIEANIDRAS UOKANASUOD D JOLCISN? JO UOKESID) Buuesuibug
) (z1oz-99€) 333
? i Bunsaulf
Se ke SRR aTEs erangee %ol ul pauysg se skeq juang Jofey Buipnioxa |QIVS) AIgelSY Haeulud
Jeak
sjuaplooy WapIooY SRIYB ]
BAINJFSUOY PUZ Jo} SIUSPRIY %01 L SIUSPIoY fOIURA jqRiuasald KiajeS Bupssuibug
SIOIUSA BQeIUaARId ON BI0IUaA SlgEIUBASLd ON 3|geluanald auUD UBL) 2J0W ON
Jeaj BAnnNoasuod y
Piiz Jo) SSpiooY sy 5o oy BP0V L |S0T ON VIN %G1 LLpue | sjuapiooy awi | iso7 [fjajes Buusauibug
A4 Aq uoneidwo) %56 A4 £g uopeidwod %08 JAd Aq uonajdwod %59 %0€ sa|i4 030 2ziuebioay JuB|SISSY 8A1N0aXT
*2}3 "sino | ‘pasinbayy Buiuies | ‘iapuig ‘UoliBuLIojU]
0z0z/LiZ fa 0zoz/Lis fa ozoz/Lig fq %0E LORBIUBLIO SINOBYD 9 LoNdLIDSaq UoNISod pieog alepdn juBlsISSY amnoax3
Jeak sad g> sioug seak jad g» sioug Jeaf Jad 5> siou3 %OE Aoein2oy S8INUI % 1ekoed pieog juejsissy annoax3|
JEa ) BAN8sUDY ;
pUZ 10} SIUSPIOOY awi| jsoqoN  IieRiRdY BULLISOTON YIN %01 ! sjueppoy awl] 1507 AlajeS  juelsissy aapnaax3
(BuipuejsinD 0} plousalyL
3A4 fa %00l A4 A %GL 3Ad Ag %05 %G1 woyj pieme pajeloid—pajsdwios senpow Buiues jo 9% yoledsig
uo paseq—Eeo9 [enpiMpul) uope|duwio) SINpop uoliesyial
suonesadp pue BuussuBug o) sjsenbay uoiebiisanu] .
0zoz/Le/ Aa 0z0z/Le/5 Kq EFERL %Gk pIeMIO 0} 199Uspeaids suoneisdosiy Ao E dojensg yojedsig
olpey yojedsiq Joj Wwaisks
0Z0z/LE/1 Ad [esodold 0zoz/otiv Ag lesodold 0z0z/0g/9 Ag lesodold %SGh BUIPI0oeY B 10§ UOHEPUSWILIOY SPIACIA g UDJESSaN Uyojedsig
YN ETELL] YIN %Sk Bujues ] sujuQ Jejue) puBwWO) BBidwe) yaedsig
sjeo9 € sjeo9 Z 120D | %G €l Jea [B9sId LZ0Z/020Z 40) suopsabibng [eog d|3 epinoid yojedsiq
A4 Ag syug Auwow zi 3Ad Ad siua Ayiuow o1 3A4 Aq sjua Auiuop 8 %0} 1581 Ajypuoyy Jejusg suoneledo dnyoeg yojedsig
; . ; (zLoz-g9€l 3331 eds
sanuIN 0'0Z senuI 222 SBNUIN 55T %51 Ul poulsaq e seq 1ueAT Jofe BUIPNOXS [AIYS) AMIgeIeY yojedsig
Jes ) aanoasuad .
PUZ 0} SUBPIOY SwilL jsoToN  STUOPIOY auAL 1507 0N YIN %01 ! sjuaplooy sy 1507 Alejes yasedsig
==
L S . PioysenL WM oioN oo deq uonsod

(23)



_ 0Z0Z 0t Jequaydes 020¢ 0t 0202
Kanoos eS| e ys
g ueid ¥a wedwo) sunr Aq ueld ¥a aeidwos 'L yalew Aq uejd ¥Q aieldwon %02 ueld (¥0) Aiancoay saisesiq B ysigeis3 1
uonnjosay obelany = JnoH | uoinjosey sbeleny = sinoH z  uonnjosay abeleny = siNoH ¢ %01 SiolL SOpdioH LI u
(ieaf (Jeak (1eak Jad swnumop jo sajnuiw
Jad alunumop Jo Spuodas £¢ Jad SLUUMOP JO SBINUIL O 0 pue ‘sinoyy) swndn %5666 %51 Alige|ieAY SIBAIBS [EO1UD § YJOMEN A
pue sajnulW Zg) awndn %66°66 PUB SINoy g} awndn %/6°66
Jes ) aNnoasuoD i
DUz 10} SHMPEoY W) ooy TUIPIOTY SuNy 1801 ON YIN %01 sjuapooY alul L 1507 ‘Apjes 1
punosewn) feq sseuisng g punocsewn] Aeq ssauisng ¥ punosewn] AeQq ssauisng 9 %G1 Wwawhed Joj paliwgns ‘UoHENIDUCDSY S210AU| JjBusg $80IN0Say UBLINH
(spoliad Aed +2) sjuswisnipy uolionpag Wauag
: uewn|
sjuawsnipy 0 wswnsnipy | UBY) aiow oN sjuswisnipy z UBy) aJow oN %01 OAIIOBOLIBY BPNOU JBY) SIUD nasiq fioiked Jo JoquinN s82inosay H
suoipaUo) 0 UoIOBLI0Y |UBY) BI0LW ON SUDII28LI0D) Z UBL) 810l ON %04 Jea ), |easid Jad suoppeog/siou] |loifed $22IN0say UBWNH
0Z0Z '} uole 0z02 '} udy (senxe) sweiboid uoiiubBoosy aakojdwy
Aq Burzn pue pajeidiwoy &g Buizyin pue pejeidwon 34 A pareyduicd s % SWBOT U, YoUNT JOj oG B 1500 Y0Ex O} ainpojy dojeneg oo nosed LEUINH
i ¥ sainpasold Buison
0Z0Z '} Aierugad Aq pajeidwod  0Zoz 'L aunr Ag pajeidwo) 3Ad Ag pejejdwiod ST pUZ Guoyy BuIpNioUl ‘[EnUEIy Bnpadoid 19814 dojasg S30JN0SaY UBWNH
Asp Aep yiom Aep %G| HuoW $82In0saY UBWNH
%IOM PIE JO LODU AQ UOISSIUANS Ui JO UCOU AQ LIOISSILUGNS  3LOM LIS Jo Loou Ag uoissiugng woe3 jo Ae@ HioMm Uiy Aq papiigng sjeroueuly yeid 1siid
lea), aAnossuU0D }
pUZ 1o} SWRPIoOY SWiL sojoN  STUSPIOV SUALIs0T ON YIN %01 sjuaprooy auwil | 1507 Ajsjes 530UN0S3Y UEWNH
T 7 S T L fFo5_dea oned

(24)



SqjuoW SUUOW Wb
U8} JOJ JLOL YoBS JO PUS 8L} 10} LILIOLL Yoea Jo pus au} 18

S[o1UOIqNS JO %56 jeldWoy  SI0AUOONS JO %06 S1RidWoD

Suuow
XIS JOj L)UOW Uoes Jo pua au}

1€ 94,06 Je uonejdwos sakojdwz w06 1B uoya|dwod sakojldw  1E %06 18 uone|duiod sakojdws

S|0HUCIGNS JO %6g Sleidwo)

%02 Bujuies| ssauaiemy Jasn pug Auiuop yagmoLny

L6)

‘961 ‘66 P 161 wewabeuey pue esucdsay uBpU-G L |03
819481 '9'8L v'E) '£'9) ALnoeg aemyos uoneoiddy-g) lonueD SI0
6L kol :‘. OLL LY YLL T L

weubolg Buiies| pue L jduij- | joRueD 8i0
594 2’94 'g9L T m: 1’9l _2%0 puk Buucjiuoy wnomoy

-9} I0AUOD SID 6'S) 951 1 G1 [0NU0D SSa30Y S5IRI-G) 104U0D SID
§°0L '¥'0L '£°04 'T0L 10} senpqede] Lanooay

BjEC-0) 104UOD IO T8 L' SPSUBAQ ABM|EW- J04U0D SID

'L suoliasold
%Se JOSIOG GO PUE HRUI-L [0AUOD SID £'9'99 ‘59 V'S 9T
‘}'g 5607 ypny jo siskleLy pue § jojued S0

I'g m.__ezm__s.._o_z_, v:u 28&_.1_ ‘sacine(] SPQON

uo pue \PIEH JO) yuog S-G joRued 10
ve'er Ty L'y seliopaug ¥ jo 950 pajl O losued
SIDSE'VE Beue A A D€ |oRued S10
gz've'et

‘T LT SIBSSY BIBMYOS JO |04U0D) PUE AojusaulE [oNUeD SID 9L 'G)
WL 'L 1L SIeSSY AIBMPIEY JO [oAUCD pue Ajusaul-L [oaueD 10
‘(z dnous uonelusWwaldw) ‘| °} sjonueDd S0} slenue Awnses dojenag

ueioluYoa] 1]

UeRIuyas L .—._l

$j0UOIANS JO %56 2B(dWOoD  S[oU0DgNS JO %06 Slejdwo)

‘sassad0id UoneIpawal
pue sanssi juslwinaop
‘sisa) Apapend jje ajejdwog

YN

sjojuoagNs JO %58 BFdwoy

WiIN

96l

‘G'6L '¥6L ‘16l Wwewebruey pue asusdsay Juapioul-§L joAUSD SID
LL'8L 08 'E'EL 'BRL SR TR L

Runoag asemyos ucedjddy-gl joauoD SO EL'GL 'ZH'OL 'LL'9L 9L
‘@91 5’9l 'v'9l ‘Tl lanued pue Buuoiiuoy 1unoony-gi jonued §I0
0V'SE2'SL €51 "TG) jeauod

$5929Y SSR|RUM-GL 109U0D SID ZL'ZL LE'EL 042 621 T LT
‘9T 'SZL 'PZL ETE 2T 12 esusjaq iepunog-Z | [0AUOD SI1D

FLELL T

141 (s9uopms 's1einoy 'Sl ) saainag o} 2

aIn3ag-| | [eaued SO £°0l senpqede] Aaacey BlEg-0l |00UOD SID

WGE £6'Z6'16

RIBAISS (BIUD SEOLAS PUR "S[O2010.d 'SHOd Womiap jo [oquoD pue
UOHELIT-G [04U0D SID §'8 'L'8 98 SASURJQ MEM(EN-g jonuoD SID
6LBLLL LS L YL susoeioid

J3SMOIG 8N PUE W~ OAUOD SID L'9'9'0 59 '8 ‘€9 T'9

'1'g sBo7 upny jo siskjeuy pue 9 jo4u03 SI2
§'5 'S '1'G SIAUAS [EINUD UD MEMYOS

pue aempiel Joj uonesnByuos aIndes—5 10AVED SID B BE LY VY
'£F TE 1 sebepialg aNIBNSIULLPY JO BSM) PIflOAUOD- jo4UoD SID
re'et e e LE 6 Amiqeiaung BUOD-g jolued
S19 1| 51955y alEMpIEH jo [oqueg pue Acjusaul-| jeaued S10

{(z dnous vonmuswedw) *|° L Slonuod SI0) sieued Aundes dojaeg

(008) 18jus) suonesedQ dmioeg su) pue 2940

%oz fewiud ay) usamaq sisa L Janofied Auapeny PNpUoD

uepiuysay ] Jowag|

uepiuyoa] || joluss

1ybBiam 810N (5]

ydaq / uonisod

(25)



020Z 'FE WIEN AQ 0Z0Z Ot aunr Aq 020Z 0Ot Joquwsidss Ag %G1 [ERUBIN S8inQ dor dojaAsq Sel0i5|
B sjuane abig| Jo) aseqelep
0Z0Z '} yosew Aq pejeidwo)  pZOZ ‘L sunr Aq pajejduwio) 020 3A4 £q pateidwos %Sl 6l JopueA Y xipuaddy suonesedp Aousbiaws dojanag sS2I0lg
344 Aq sBuluien ¢ ejeidwon 344 Aq sBuuiel) ¢ sleidwo)  JA4 Ag Bujuiey Z ajeidwio %02 8l Bujuies | jusliainooid spimalels saiois|
6 Ul ajedpied £ ui ajedpied 5 ul sjedioed %01 sinpaypos Buidaayasnoy jesiy/pieh Ajyjuow ul siedivied S2U0}S
leak
SjUapIooY 1UapIogy SjRIURA .
SAIIN03SLIOD PUZ Jo} SIUBPIoY %0} L sjuapiosy ejlysy ajgejuanald ‘Aajes sai0lg
SIOIUOA SIIBIIAABI ON afoiysn sjqeaAald ON 3|0BIURARId BUO UBL} 2J0W ON
Jeak aAInOISUOD Uapiooy Jolep A s
DAIZ JO) SILISRHEON JOIEN 0N slusppoy Jofejy oN VIN %Sl g siuapiooy Jofei ‘Kiajes ai0lS
Jeo . Mlingasts sjuapiooy aw|] jso7 Aele s2I0|S
PUZ JO) SIUBPIOOY BWIL ISOT ON ST oPio0Y SULLISOT ON hidd %St w Jeppoy AL 1507 Rajes
(uoejuaLLINDO] PUE SPIEPUEIS
oy n:
Ad anuz 3Ad ybnouy Aienuer WIN %52 i 30uBidwod %001) WieiBoid Lonoadsul UOREISANS nesans
sBuneall passiw oN SaEin w:hqu“EE ok sBunesw passiw z uey) a1ow opN %01 (jeoo) [enpialpu)) souepuapy Buneapy haes uoljeisgns
JAd Aq suonepuswwossy € JAL Ag SuoHEpusSWIWODEY g 3A4 Ag uonepusWwWODay | %01 €l (jeos) |enpiaipu]) SUOHEPUSLILLIOIaY Juawanoidi| $5800.d uolelsqns
(zioz-ggcl 3331
y . y uo n
b eweser e i ul pauyaq se sheq weng Jofey Buipnioxa |QIvs) Aigeley Weiang
Jeak
sjuaptooy 1USpIooY SfoIUaA, % nsl
BAINIBSUOD PUZ 0} SiUpIaoY %51 L sjuspIoay ejoiyeA sjgejusnald ‘Alejes uoleisqng|
IYOA SIGEIIOABIA ON SOIYaA sjqeiuanald oN BjqEIUBABIH BUO UBL) BJOW ON
dEBk SAEaBU0D sjuspiooy Jofew :fe uollelsans
PUZ Jo} S}URPI2DY JolEI ON SR DR ON ViN %0} 8 wapiooy Jofel Aisjes !
JBOA BAljIO8SLOY e sjuspiaoy awi| 1507 A9 uojeisgn
PUZ o} SJUSPISOY BW1] 150 ON SIUBPIDY Bl 1507 ON WiIN %Sl LL pue | UapIa0Y all] 1507 ‘Ajejes | S
sBun@all passiw oN umwm_cwm:,_hﬂﬂ_.ﬂ_o,: - sBuesL passil Z UBY} aJow o %01 (jeos) [enpialpu)) eouepuayy Buieap fisjes suoessdg
JA4 Aq suoliepuswiuionsy € A4 £q SUCHEPUBWILIODSY T 344 Ag uonepusWIWIODSY | %0} ([0S [ENPIAIPU]) SUOIIEPUBLILLIODSY JusLanodw)| MMSEm suopessdo
sbuiesiy i 18 uoiiedioied Buiesiy sbuiiell suonessd
nybuueapy + yebie| L 18 dnoi9 B /M Juasald VN %S plei4/sbunaapy Aieles ‘idag asnoH u| Juasald pue dojanag ’ 0
§ U ajedioiued 2 ul sjedpiped g ul ajedpiped %01 ajnpayos Buideayesnoy jesyypiel Auuow uj aedioiped suonesadQ|
i " ’ (zLoz-99¢l 333
SN O s e b %3t ul pauyaq se skeq uan3 Jofey Guipnioxa 1aIYS) ey SpERdd
leak Sjuapoy juspRaY Bp2IusA
BMINDBSUCY PUZ 10} SIUSPIaoY  SOIYaA 3jqeijuaiald ON 2jqEIUBABIH BUD UBY) BIOW ON %Sk L sjuapiody SfoIyaA slgejuanald fisjes suonesedo
BIoIy8/\ SIqRUBNaId ON
Jeak aANoasUoD %01 i
X us solepy Kis. suonesad
puz 1o} Sjuapioy Jofep oN Sjuaplady JofeW ON VN 8 sjuapioy Jolep Kisjes o
IR0 SRS sjuaploay ewi] jso K8, suojiesedQ
PUZ 10} SJUSPIDAY aLl| 1507 ON SjUBpIDoY Bll| S0 ON YIN %S1 l jU2pIadYy el jso7 Jes 1
A4 A %001 3Ad Ad %56 3Ad A9 %06 %51 S8Jnoy BuioUenbased/sIBBI |INY JO Uoloadsu] [BNsiA saoIeg peld
6 Ul sjedivied £ usjediiued § ul sedpied %01 ainpayos Buidaayesnoy jeslpied Ayiuow ui siedioed s80IMeS plald
WIN 3Adfq YIN %02 BulALg UHWS pUB Jsjua) pueliwo) xa Buuies | aur-uo S8010BS Pl
%56 %06 %G8 %01 aouedwo)-3 niyy suonoadsu| ajiuan Apeam s202IAI9S Pjald
d seinpadold RIS T
0zoz/ie/l Aq ejeidwoe) 0z0z/1lp Aq ajeidwol 0Z0z/1£/9 Aq ejadwiod %5k |V 1o} suononsul Alieq ' [Enueqy esnok-uj dojersq 1 1
1eak
Suapiody WBPI0Y SPRIYBA ;
BANN0BSUCD PUZ JO) SIUSpIDdY %0L L SjUaPIoY BDIUSA Slgejuanald ‘Aejes sadlnag plald
SHOIBA TN ON BoIYsA Aqeiusnald oN BIqEIUBABIH BUD UBL) 8I0W ON
Jeak anjnoasucs sjuapioay Jofep :Ka) $22|Mag plald
puz o} S)UapIoay lolej oN SjuapIooy Jofel oN WiN %5 8 proay Jofe ‘Aiajes 1
8D\ SAIREUOD Su3; alul] 1507 - SadlAua) 3l
pUZ 10 SWGPIDOY sy 180 o STUPPIRJY BuiL 1507 ON WIN %51 ! wapoy awly 5o Kisjes 119 pal4
[ETBUpeReROIT wmer by WhioM___eioN ®o5__deq [ uonisod

(26)



adl -6}

JSIeuIgam-uoleanpa-sulNulu0)/30|e1e3-as1N0)/A0g sexa) ed) npapds//-Sdny - 81

‘pieme abeiaae dnoub Buuesauibug uo %06

pue pieme abeieAe dnoib uoneISqNS UO %0G PASEq aq M uoneISqns pue buuesuibuz Jo 10SIAIEANS 10} PIBMY--/ |
‘dnoub ssosoe soueulioped jenpiapul Bulbeisne Aq euop

aq [im juswainsesyy ‘uopejuswaldwr o} joud Juswebeuep woly [eacidde paau [im SJuBUIBACIdW| SS8I0I4 payiusp|
Jspirosd panosddeaid isyjo o ‘sAemyjed OSIN ‘Buiies] uppexur] ybnosy) pejejdwios suoisses buiei| — gi
'0€ J8quuajdag 0} | Aienuepr wodj JeuLojsuel| pue suonjoadsu| Auapend)

Juswidinbg aaine@ eur] epnjoul pue suopoadsu) eynsyddy ybnosy) pejonpuod eq o) suonoedsul juslidinby — G|
Jawojsna uo Bunrem Ji Ljue Juswiiogsejejduios o) Juswubisse woly ysej Jed auwi) sbeisAy — |

‘uonewIoul feuolppe jo jsenbai pue ssuodsal 10) syaam g Buimojfe Josinedng o) Juswisaoiduil 8oinI8s

Jawojsng o sbuires [ejusjod pue Juswerosdun pajsebbns ‘sseooid Bupsixe jo uojeuejdxs uapum pugns — gf
"950/0 18pJO @IAISS 0] PaubISSe 1Sil J8pio

891/U8S AW} WOl painseaw swy) Jiedal pue asuodsal [BJo] apnjoul [im sl asuodsay Bunooysse|qnoif 1818 — ZiL

‘uonejuswejduwn oy Joud Juswebeue woly feacidde pasu [jim spusLuoA0IdLW] SS890Id pPalijusp] — | L

‘Buipiodsy jeasi4 pue jabpng ayj 1o} suoieayIsse)o Bujuodal js0a WO Meu Juswajduil "¢ Jusiwebeuew
$1500 poddns sspaq 0] $3s00 Buipodal 10j SUOHBILISSEID Ml Ajuap] 'z ‘sasealoul }SO9 JO $821n0s AJusepl 0] (GLOZ Ad
0] L LOZ A-) SIS00 [eauojsiy yoreasey | :Sjusuodwoo g jo pasuduwios si joslold poddng jusiwisbeuep 1S00 W0 — 0}

‘uolduosep pue ‘uonesynsnf ‘seweieul) ‘sejewsa josfosd apnjoul ueyd padojensp

Ajsnoineid u pajseosio) saueudjuiew pue sjuawaoidwy [eydes pauueid ssedwoous pnoys xyiom pepsfold — 6
“aulj} jsof sAep

£ ueyy aiow ) Bugnsel seunfur jeyjo pue awiy 3soj u Buynsal seunful Joeju09 [BOLGOS dpNJOUI SJUspIooe Jofep — 8

Jal Ble SBfi 881f JUBPIOOE BIUO Panalyoe SI jeos “abewep Ausdoid Jueoayubis 1o linful yum sjuapioul 18yjo
10 sjuapiooe sjqejussaid peos uo o} Jayel Ajjeseush pue sIseq |ejuswipedsp e U0 painseswl ale SJUspIody 8joIyep — /

‘(£ 1L0Z 40} pejepdn }si|) Swie)l s8l0)s pajos|as uo pasegd — g

‘sBuipesy ||y uo peseq juswuiepy buipeey “Ajuo sbuipesy [enuep uo paseq Aoeinaay Buipesy — ¢

"$80UBLIND20 8iNjny JusAald 0} SUCHEPUBWILLI0TE)

pue uoneoypsnl uspum ainbai im suoisnox3 uolsinboe jeuajew ybnodyy sbuines Aousioye usssalojun 1o
wie)sAs ul SaloRINOoBUI BJEP SB (JoNs josjuod safodiwe jo episino swajy Buipnjoxse pauueld sinoy zg = Si8piQ YoM — ¥
'SI8PIO HOM IV — €

"uoleIapISU0I

ojul uexe] aq [im pajonysuoa Buisq jou yiom o Bupsessio) qol ejnuiw jse| yum pajeldoosse sefijeuuouqy — g
‘8Insodxa JO S[8A8] UO paseq

Apuasayip pajybiem ate sjeob [ejuswpedap taremoH sesfojdwse (e sepnjoul eob Ajajes ay) Jo JUaWIBA8IYIE 8Y] — |

S3JON dI3 020¢

(27)



MEMORANDUM

To: Fred Gamble
Bill Thomas
Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Mayor Bill Blackburn

From: Mike Wittler

Date: December 12, 2019

Re: Agenda Item 11 — Consideration and Action on Management Incentive
Plan for FY 2020

Attached is the draft Management Incentive Plan (MIP) for FY 2020. Proposed changes
include:

e Add/remove various individual goals and adjust percentages.

o Adjust O&M goals to consider past performance, current budget, and APPA
Financial Metrics survey.

e Goals have been revised based on the goal attainment for the FY 2019 Incentive
Plans and historical performance.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

K Lt

Mike Wittler, P.E.

(28)




FY 2020 MANAGEMENT December, 18, 2019
INCENTIVE PLAN

KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PLAN
FISCAL YEAR 2020

Supersedes all prior Management Annual Incentive Plans

Plan Objectives

The purpose of this Plan is to provide additional motivation and incentive for designated
members of the management of KPUB to achieve or exceed the Company’s goals and
objectives for the fiscal year; to establish objectively verifiable measures of performance
for positions eligible under the Plan; and to foster teamwork among key members of
management in attaining the Company’s strategic plans.

Plan Year

The Plan Year for this Plan begins on October 1, and ends on September 30, coinciding
with KPUB’s fiscal year.

Plan Administration

The Personnel Committee (Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and General Manager) shall review
the Plan annually and recommend changes, if any, to the Plan for adoption by the Board of
Trustees. The Personnel Committee shall ensure the Plan represents the appropriate levels
of accomplishment consistent with the Company’s historical performance, strategic goals,
operating environment and stewardship responsibility. The Board of Trustees may modify
or terminate this Plan or any provision herein at its discretion.

The Board will endeavor to make any adjustments to this Plan as soon as possible after the
beginning of each fiscal year.

Positions Eligible for Participation

The following management positions are eligible to participate in the Plan: General
Manager/CEO, Chief Engineer, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, Manager of Customer
Service, Distribution Engineer, Manager of Operations, Manager of Information
Technology, Manager of Human Resources, General Foreman, Field Services Supervisor,
and Marketing Manager.

Occupants of these positions must be full-time employees on the payroll on the day the
Board of Trustees approves payment of the annual incentives under the Plan. An
otherwise-eligible participant will be rendered ineligible for any payments under this Plan

Approved by the Board on Approved by the Personnel Committee on

(29)




if, within the six months preceding the last day of the Plan Year, s/he has received a
disciplinary notice advising that his/her employment is in jeopardy.

Pro Rata Awards

An individual who is promoted into an eligible position during the Plan Year and who
remains in an eligible position on the last day of the Plan Year will be eligible for a payment
under the Incentive Plan prorated according to the time worked in the eligible position. If
the individual is promoted from an eligible position to another eligible position, the
Incentive Plan payment will be a combination of the payments for which s/he is eligible,
prorated according to time spent in each position during the Plan Year. Employees who
start their employment or take an unpaid leave of absence during the Plan Year will receive
a prorated award based on the number of full months for which they were paid. Should an
individual be demoted during a Plan Year, his/her eligibility for an Incentive Plan payment,
if any, and the amount of the payment will be determined by the General Manager/CEO in
his discretion.

Goals/Performance Factors

An individual’s entitlement to an Incentive Plan payment will be measured by the
individual’s departmental or individual goals. The calculated percentage to which an
individual will be entitled under the Incentive Plan will be multiplied by the maximum
Incentive Plan payment to which the individual is entitled by virtue of his/her position.

The maximum Incentive Plan payment for which a position is eligible is as follows:
® General Manager/CEO — 3% of annual salary.
® Chief Engineer; and Chief Financial Officer — 3% of annual salary.

® Controller, Manager of Operations, Manager of Customer Service,
Distribution Engineer, Manager of Information Technology, Manager of
Human Resources, General Foreman, Field Services Supervisor, Marketing
Manager — 3% of annual salary.

Each goal listed for a position, whether corporate or individual, is assigned a weight to
reflect the importance of the goal to the individual’s overall performance, with the
combined weight-ratings totaling 100%. The achievement level of each goal will also be
measured against a Target level of achievement, a Threshold (below-Target) level, and an
outstanding (above-Target) level. An individual who meets Target with respect to a
particular goal will receive the full weight assigned to that goal. An individual who
achieves only the Threshold for that goal will receive half the weight assigned to the goal,
and an individual who achieves Qutstanding results will receive one-and-one-half times
the weight assigned to the goal. No weight will be given for performance below the
Threshold level for a goal. An individual who has not met Threshold level cannot meet

Approved by the Board on Approved by the Personnel Committee on

(30)




Target level, and an individual who has not met Threshold and Target levels cannot meet
Outstanding level.

Company-Wide Limit on Total Payments

The total pool of money available each fiscal year for Incentive Plan payments shall be
determined by the Board of Trustees as part of the budgeting process. In the event that the
total of Incentive Plan payments for the fiscal year would exceed this limit, each
participant’s payment eligibility will be reduced by the percentage by which the Incentive
Plan payments collectively exceed the total Incentive Plan payments allowed for the
current fiscal year.

Special Awards

If the total amount to be awarded for FY2020 is less than the total budgeted pool, then any
portion of the remaining funds may be awarded to one or more management employees at
the Board’s sole discretion.

Schedule for Pavments Under Plan

Incentive Plan payments will be made to all eligible participants as soon as practicable
following the end of the fiscal year.

Publication of Plan

Upon the Board’s adoption of this Plan each fiscal year, including any adjustments thereto,
the General Manager/CEQ will arrange for delivery of a copy of the Plan to each eligible
participant and will periodically remind participants of the goals by which their entitlement
to Incentive Plan payments at the end of the fiscal year will be measured.

Adjustments to Company-Wide Performance Results

The Personnel Committee may make adjustments to the calculation of Company-wide
goals for purposes of this Plan in order to reflect the true operating performance of the
Company more accurately. Adjustments may include, but are not limited to, excluding or
including extraordinary items of income or expense.

Employment Not Affected

Nothing in this Plan shall be deemed to confer on any employee a right of continued
employment or affect the right of KPUB to terminate the employment of any employee at
any time, with or without cause or prior notice.

Approved by the Board on Approved by the Personnel Committee on

€2V




EIEREY

uo [euod aniag jlos Buussuibug juawsdwy)
*13WOISND 0} gNdM W0l SUOHEIIUNWILIOD
ajelauab |m jey) sauoisajiw oyads auyaq

0Z0z ‘L€ udiep £q 0202 '0¢ fep Aq 0zoz 'Le Ainr Aq %51 159nbay JAWOISND 40 }asuo uodn pauyap Auesio J9aulbug JeIyd
ale suonejoadxa 0s saulaww ssaooid aolnes
pauyap pue Aayod aamuas A|puely Jjasn alow
B 3)Bal]) [$S800Id 20IMBS n:mu,sw_oa VMBS
uoneubisaq Japinoid
m AAd b et JOMO D1ANd AT Vv S8NdY ouenpy IO
186png Japun jiesanQ siosloid
m IAdfq YN %01 gl pauueld ae|dwog :uonsjdwoy 1ebpng [epden 4o3ubu3 JaIuD
88'eEs s 9G'vES S F A% %Gl L 1awojsno jiejal Jad O uonnguisic Jasuibug jayn
; y . (z10Z-99¢1 333 Ul pauyeq
sanuln 0702 SeINUIN GZ'2Z SSINUIN G°GZ %51 se skeq Juan3 Jofey BUIPNXE |GIYS) Algerey 18aulbuz JBIND
JEah BAN23SU0D PUOISS SJUapIooY JuBpIooY SRIYaA {jeyuawpedaq)
%S 4 : 19auBug JBIyD
10} BjoIyap AjgejuaAaid ON 3|01y A 2|qeluanald oN B|qeIUBNald BUO UEY) 2J0W ON SJUBPINOY APIYSA Sjgeluanald Ksjes
1804 BNIRISEUD) PIDOS SjUBpIOoY L) S0 ON sjuapiooy Jolep oN %Gl z sjuapiooy awl| 1507 Algjes 198uiBul JPIYD
10} SIUBPINOY AW 1SOT ON : i ! ' o ! | : | 1
SUONenIasqQ ealy
Ad1ed Lz Ad1ed gl Adsed L %01 SIOp JO ‘SuonBAIasqO qor ‘sHosyD Alajes jenuuy 039
; ‘ : oMaN
020z ‘0¢€ udy Aq poday 0202 '0¢ aunr Aq podey 020z '0€ 1snbny Aq podey %G1 pUBqPEOIg $8300Y UadQ Jo ANlIGISEa, ajeniend 030
. ; ; = Jawoysno |iejal Jad
L6ZEES S ETIPES S 95'6vES = %G1 ‘Addns jemod pue uoneroeidap sS8| ‘WO [EI10L 032
; . . (2102-99€} 3331 Ul pauyeg
s ooz T N Ll se skeq Juang Joleyy BuipNioXe AIVS) Alaeloy =
Jeak anNoasUOD puodas sjuaplooy JUSPIoOY BpoIUaA .
10} 9|21/ 9|qEIUSABIH ON 3[o1ya/\ a|qeIuBAald ON a|qejuanald BUO UBL) aIoL ON %02 ¥ (91eiodioD) SUSpIOoY SOIUBA Sjqejusnald Kisjes 032
199, AMMIaSIN PUass SJUBPIDOY Wi 1507 O sjua le of 9 a auwi| 1507 :Alaje
10} SJUSPIDAY Bli] 1507 ON UDpIDOY SWILL IS0 ON juapiody Joley oN %G 4 sjuepiooy auwi| iso7 Ajajes 030
ploysaiyL wBlom  aloN 1209 7dagq / uopisod

(32)



020z/L2/) A 0202/L2/2 Aq 0zozrLezie Aq %01 uonEeIIaucIaY jueg N8| d/Y mainay Jajjoquod
feq siop Aeq sop Aeq o %01 Lpuop yoeg jo JOI0I0D
pig Jo uoou Aq uUoISSILGNS Ul JO uoou Ag uoISSIWGNS 416 Jo uoou Ag uoissiugng ? Aeq jiopn — Ag papiwigns sjeioueuld yeiq jsi4
; . . ajnpopy Juawabeuep
0Z0Z ‘1€ yose Agq 0z0z '0¢ sunp Aq 0z0z '0¢ 18quialdag Aq %01 Jassy OSIN Uil BusoD) piepuels s1epdn Jajjonuod
020Z 'L€ Yol Aq 0202 '0€ aunr Aq 0Z0z ‘o€ Jequiaideg Aq %02 [enuely saunQ qor Jajjonuo)
1euLI04 Hoday Jpny pue Loday pieog
VIN EPERG WIN %0k WoKew O} DSIN Ul JUBWAIEIS [EIoUBUL B1B3i) Jajjonua)
0€ "dag Ag Juswabeuejy
1B A BAINOBSUOD PUCOSS 0} 8|qEliEAR LOIELLIOJUI
10} sjuswsnipe ypne oN Siusussnipe ypne oN Buipuaiajal ‘sjuswysnipe %08 YNV [EnULly! Jalionued
Jpne jueayubis oN
FRACARES HEDS SuapIooy awil] IS0 O uapiooy Jofe o Y sjuapooy awi| 1o Aaje 18]j0J3uO:
10} SJUBPIDOY BUWI| ]SO ON JUSpIODY BLll] 1807 ON Sjuapiooy Jolely oN %01 [ PIoY 8wi| 107 ‘Ajajes i 0
Sijord
-uoU ‘SjoLsIp j00YDS ‘sanunod ‘sanio o) abieyo
WIN 0202 1290320 Aq poday VIN %01 JNOUIM papIACId S1yUS [eiouEUY ainjded 0) 040
poyjaw e ysiqeis3 :Buppel] sjysuag [eoueul
‘('0)e ‘saiojdnnjueg
. 4 y [BOUCISIH 10j0B 4 pEOT YBIH) SJuncody ysiy ubiH
020Z ‘L€ Yoie Aq 020z '0¢ Aei Aq 0zoz 'Le Ainr Aq %S 1 10) Suawalinbay ysodag SSa1pPY O} S2INPadid 040
pue sa101j04 ‘Yue | 0} sabuey) juswsjdw|
"0]8 'SjuaLWalNbay JIpal) ‘ue|d suonesadQ
JA4 Aq sapiwiwion pue saljiAoY JedE Ysiqe)s3 ‘ssoluag
VN Ajddng 1amod o} Hoday VIN %02 yoddng pasinbay Anusp) ‘sjesodold saoues 042
330 10 uolen|eAs (pZ0z 104 ueld Ajddng semod
%¢60°0 %E0L0 %GLL'0 %01 sanuanay BunesadQ Jo juadiad e Se SYo-sjuM 040
d4VD 610Z Ad 10} buipodsy 020Z '6Z Ge4 Aq
JE3A BANOBSUOD) PUCD3S |BloUBUI Ul JUBWIBABIYDY  UONEISPISUOD SPIEME IO} YO 4D
10} sjeos) jefiie | Jea jo aeayiua), jo 1disoay o} pue sapuabe Bunel pue %01 (H34v0) Hodey (eroueul [enutly BmsuSYaIduIoD 040
pue seo9) pjoysalyl 1esyy  JusWisaAUl 0) Y4 8jnquisig
L€ 190 AQ Juswabeueyy
1EBA BAIINDBSUOD PUODBS 0] 3|gE|IEAR UOHEULIOJU)
10} syusunsnipe Jipne oN Sjuauiznipa ¥pne.ON Buipualajal ‘sjuswsnipe %S PNV [enuuy 049)
lipne juesyiubis oN
pgs . ) . Jswoisng
AV A ¥6°L285 29828 s %01 b Iiejey sod sesuadx3 BuRUNOIOY JBLIOISND 040
1B3 ) BANOSSUOD PUOIAS :
10} SUSPIYOY BLUL| 1SO7 ON Sjuapody awl] 107 oN sjuapiooy Jolepy oN %01 4 sjuapiooy auil] 1so7 Alejes 040
wbiep  @loN |29 7dag / uopisod

(33)



uoneubisag Jepinold

iR IAd4q VIN %0k 1oMOd 911qNd BIQBIBY YddY S.NdX S0UBADY  UBWINH Jo jabeuey
suonenasqQ ealy $80IN0s9Y
Adted Lz Adled gL Ad1ed 6 %01 SHOMN Jo ‘suonenIasqo qor ‘syosu Ajajes [enuuy  LBLING JO Jabeuep
sjuawanoidwi| € sjuawanoidw| z juswanoidwy | %01 fiajeg anoidw o) eoueldwons abelana SoIoseH
0 . uewny jo Jabeuey
(uejd vonesBiy pue $80IN0soY
0z0z ‘1€ Aenuer Aq 0202 '1€ yosew Aq 0z0z ‘1€ fey Aq %02 folod yeiq 'synsay Aening jo Arewwing apnpu) Leswn
H jo sabeuepy
030 01 O1d 0} uonesBiy 1o} lesodoid Jugng
Japenp Jauenp lapenp S80IN0saY
1O pug 18YY SHSIM Z PANSS|  JO PUT JSYY SHISM ¥ PENSS|  JO pud Jsly SHeIN 9 penss| %Sl spoday ssaiboid Auapen uejd annuaoy| ueluny jo Jabeuep
0Z0Z Jequeydas ul ABnIng 0z0z lequeydag ul Asnng 0Z0Z Jequajdas ul ABnng Aanng anssiay pue anyny Aldjes saoidw| S80N0saY
anssiay ‘sjuswanoidw) g anssiay 'sjuswanoidul| Z anssiay ‘Juswanoidw) | %01 0} sebueyn juswsjdw] :Aening aunyn) Aigjes  uewniy jo Jabeuepy
1A BANIBSUOD pUOISS sjuapoy JUSPIDAY BPIUBA . S80In0say
10} BI2IYBA B|qEIUBAId ON ajo1yap s|qejuanald oN 3|qeIUDABI DUO UBL) BIOW ON %01 ¥ (s1ei0diop) sjuapioy SpILGA BjqEIISAsId [Aigjes uewnH jo Jabeuepy
4504 S e ud| alw] 38070 Sjusplooy Jolep o 9 SjUBapID 1] 1507 :Migje oo~y
10§ SUSPIDOY BWI| 1S ON SjUSpIa0Y alut] 3507 ON JUSpIa0Y Jole ON %S 4 JUBPIoOY S| 1507 ‘Algjes uewInY Jo JabeuByy
9 v1S Woy sjuswanoidw| SSe0id Juswwaldw] T oS AR
6 9 £ %0L L yeig woy s oidwy d uswajdu 10 JoBeuepy
301G JBIOISND
SIBWOISND 000G< SIaWoISNY 0S.b< SISWOISND D0GH< %G SIBWOISND YRIQ Nueg Jo JaquInN [ejo] asealnu) 10 Jobeuen
[B101 BSE 10} SIUNCODY |B10L #8710} [B101 60Z 40} 80IAIBG JDLIOISND)
pledald MON GZZ PPY  SINOSOY pledaid MON 0G} PPY SIUN0OOY predaid MON G pRY e f i Jo saBeuey
(SJUNODDY BAIRY)  B3IUBS JBWIo)SNY
0085< 0oss< 00zs< %S siBWOISNY g ssapeded Jo Jaquinu asealou| 10 JobEUEY
1€ 18qojo0 Aq JusWwabeuey
IB9 ) BAINOBSUOY) PUODBS 0} 8|gE|IBAB UOHELLIOJUI 201G JAWOISNY
10} Sjuawisnipe pne oN SslEAipe e ON Buousaisyel ‘sjusw)snipe %01 Ry ey jo _wmmams_ﬁ
upne juesyiubis oN
(*o)e 'Buluies | ssoi) ‘uonejoy ‘bBulues |
0202 ' 1€ Aienuer Ag 0207 ‘9z Aieniged Aq 0202 ‘1€ YoIe Aq %S} enpinipul) weiBoid uatudojeAsg saAojdu ﬁ%ﬂw%%%
@oIag Jawo)sny Juswsjdw) pue dojeaag
awojsn
94,2600 %E0L 0 %GLL'0 %G1 sanuanay BunesadQ jo Juaoiad e se SYo-ajUp\ wo_ammohh 26 mpcm_.w._
WaJSAS JUSLWBA0IAW] pue
Buney ‘mainey jjeo juawajdw pue ‘yoeqpas4
20IAIBS JaWO)sN
YIN 344 Aq WIN %GZ Jawoisny pue Buipicoay ||IeD Juswajdw| t mo | mmmcm_w___
'SjjeD 201MI9S JALLOISNY JOj SPIEpUB)S USiiqe)sT
weiboid uawenoidwi Alenp sanies Juawsajdw)
JBa A BANIBSUOD PU0Dag AT SO . 5 —r 20IAISS JBWOISNY
10} SJUBPIOOY BLUI| 1507 ON JUBpIaY Bl | 3S07 ON Juspiaoy Joleyw oN %01 Z Sjuspiody 8wl | 1807 ‘Ajsjes 10 Emm__m.a_._
wbap 210N 1209 1dag / uonisod

(34)



(D08 PUE $3}89) PIEA ‘SSNOUBIEA ARl oL
VIN 0202 3Ad Aq YIN %G1 i uoneuLoju|
2210 ute) payepdn welshg ssaooy Aunaes 10 JoBeuep
‘sassac0id uoneipawial (oo8) Abogoutpoe |
YIN PUE SaNSS! JUBWINIOP WIN %02 Jajuen suonesado dnyoeg ay) pue a2 Aewld uoneuLoju|
pue ‘s1s8} Auapend jie ajeidwon 8} usamjaq sisa ] Jonojie Apspenp janpuod jo Jabeuepy

96l 'S'6L "¥'6L 'E6L

‘761 'L'6L JuswabEuy puE asuodsey WWBPUI-L [040D SID

LE'BL0L'BL 6B B8

LBE 9B 'S8 WEL'EEL ‘TEL LBl Aunoag siemyos uoneaiddy

g1 [0SO SID BAL 'FLL ULV 9LL 'GAL YL 'L weibold

Buiies] pue sseusiemy AlUmas & jdwi-£} [egued sio

£1'9L 'ZL'9L 'L1gl 6oL 'Bal L9l ‘9l 's'el val 'Tol

‘L'gl jonuog pue Buucjiuo JWNOI0Y-94 [0NUSD SID OL'SE 'B'SE

‘°G1'O°GL 'EGL ‘TS "L GL [0AU0D $5990Y SSEBUA-GL ouoD SID

ZVZLLLZE 0LEL

‘6208 LT 9TL ST YT BT TEL L) esusjeq Aepunog

“ZL1oBUeD SI1O 11 'ELL ‘T hL 1L (seuopmg “siainoy 'sfiemadld)

SaaIAB( YiomBn Joj sucneinByueD anaes-L L lo[uod S0
sjonuoogns 504 V0L ‘0L ‘Z0} 'O} SeuNaEdED ABojouya |
0 .6 a181dwo: S|0J3UOIGNS JO %06 ABjdwo)  SjoRUoIGNS J0 %68 BlR|dwo) %02 A12r003) BIECQL 1OHUGD SID €6 'T'6 'L'6 SB9IAIG puE uoneuLoju|
10 %56 =39 2 '5{000101d ‘SHOE HOMIBN JO [0JUOD PUE LOREYLIT-G [04UCD SID J0 JobrUBK

980998 ‘T8 | '8 SISUSJSQ AIEMEN-E |ONUOD SIDE'L ‘8L 'LL

‘GG YL 'L L SUORISI0Y JBSMDIG GaAA PUE |[BWI-L [04U0D SID

£'9'9'9'6'9 'v'9 'e°'9 'T'9 1’0 sbo upny jo siskeuy pue

*BULOUUOR 'BoUBUAIUIIBY-S [OUCD §1D §' ‘'S LG SIeUeg (RIgUD

UD RUBMYCS PUE SJEMPIEH Joj uohesnByue] amses-g joRued SID

BFBF Ly 'YE e Ty L'y sebajpaug

BANEASILILIPY JO 5] PBlCAUODP LD SID L' 'FE SE ¥E

g 'TE 'L'e wewaebeuel AfgeieUn SNORUNLOD-E [0RUDD S1D

9T VT T TT LT wessy

SIBAYOS JO [0UOD PUE AIDJUBAU-Z [OUOD SID L1 9L 'SL 'YL

‘£'L 1L SIessy aUempIeY Jo [o5uag pue AoiUasUl-L jonued §10

fz

dnous) uoneuBwadw *| L Sj0UeD S12) sjonued Aunosg dopasg
' i ADOJOUY23 |

0Z0Z '0¢ Jequisydag 0zoeg 0zoz 'Le
Aq uejd ¥ sye|dwo) ‘0 aunp Ag ueid ¥g aleidwon  yose Aq ueld ¥yg aweidwo) %02 ueid (4Q) Aancosy Jaisesiq e Usliqeis3 HUJ«MMM %mﬁ
(Jeah sad ABojouyos |
(1eak Jad awiumop o seinuiw  (1eak Jad awnumop Jo sejnuiw
BWIUMOP JO SPUODAS £E pue : £ : : = %Gl Aupge|ieny sianas [eanu) pue yomiaN uonEuLIDjU|
ue sinoy g) awndn ¢ u dn ¢ R b 2
sanuIw 26) swndn %6666 0P y g) swndn 9,/6°66 0 PUB 'sinoy ) awndn %66°66 10 JoBeuel
ABojouyoa |
1Ba )\ 8Alnoasuo) puoosag ]
10} SUBPIDOY BUILL 1SO7 ON SJUSPIOY aWil] 107 ON Sjuspiooy Jofely oN %01 4 sjuappoy awi] 1o :Aisjes nuoh_uom%m._%mﬂ
wbram 90N eon 7daq | uopisod

(35)



*0)8 '@oueApy
VIN paiedaid sBugssyy ¥ YIN %01 ul Uoneuasald MaIAay 'saupnQ 'saido] ysigelsg  uelialod [BIausg)
:sBunsapy Alejes asnoH u| Jo UOHBUIPIODD
suonenssqQ ealy
AdJad goz Ad18d 0L} Ad Jad o¥L %01 SIOM JO ‘SUOREAISSTO GO ‘S¥03UD) KIdjes enuuy ueLlaI04 [RISUSS
Aanng
sjuswanoidw] g sjuswenoidw| Z uswanoidwy | %0l amyng Kieyes uo peseq sabueys juswaiduwl UBLWBID [BIBURD
smai9 Joj dn
sjuane Ayjuow g sjuans Alyjuows / sjuana Alyuow g %01 UeBI) PuE SOUBUSIUIEI PIEA AILIUOW SINPAYOS uewiaio [elauag
. ‘(*01@ 'swoog ‘sjgyong
WIN Aq :mmmwwmvwéa%%ﬁ,”ﬂﬂn:w WIN %401 ‘$yonJ] Jepea] malD) Sa[OIYaA UORONISUDD  UBLISIOA [eiduasy
: : IE JOj 1SIPi9aY0 ¥o0IS apoiyaa e dojanag
. . ’ (Z10Z-99€1 3331 W pauyag
S8INUIN 0°02 SaNUIN G222 seinuipy §°62 %S se sAeq Juan3 Joleyy Buipnpxe |QIYS) Aigeley uelaiod |eisuag
mmmwﬂwhw”%ww_“wo«. Suapry JUSPIAJY SRIYSA %01 ¥ SJUaPINDY 9joIya/ B|geIuaAald (AlBjeS  UBWAI0A [BIBURD
H (+] B - T
SIIUBA SIGEIUSARI ON S0y A B|qEJUBABIH ON a|qejuanald auo Uey) aJoW ON
1eahk aANIBSU0D ;
pUZ 10} SJUBPIIOY JOE ON sjuspiooy Jolejy oN VIN %01 9 sjuspiooy Jofey :Ajajes  uewalod |e1sUSY
Jesh annaasuod pug ;
10} SUBPIDOY BUI | }SO7 ON SjUSPISOY BLll] 1807 ON WIN %51 4 Sjuspiooy auwi| )07 Mgjeg  uBWAI0S [RIBUSY
Slapea) UONEIO}Sal UoNejsqns Jeauibug
10 %001 o} @e|dwon $19p28} 40 919 o} AYRIdWOD  $16PES) JO %05 10} A3YWO) %0€ pue 1apaay 10} sishleue fouabuyuoo ajejduwio) uonnqusig
; . ) Jeauibug
8YEES S 9G'pES S peGess %S I Jswolsno [1ejal Jad WO uonnguisia vonnquisia
spoeduwl Ws)sAs pue ‘sjuawaiinbal
‘ : uoleso] ‘sejeqal Buipnioul aoue)sisse gNdH Jaauibug
020z 'L ludy Aq pajeidwo)  0Zoz 'L AInr Ag pajejdwo) A4 Aq pajejdwo) %62 ‘sUBWaAINbaJ BUIPNOUI SIBWIOISND [ERUPISE) uopnquisiQ
pue [erosawwoo Joj weiboid A3 dojersq
; . ; (Z10Z-99¢€1 3331 Ut paulaq Jeaulbuz
sATAnge SR Se e i %ak se skeq Juan3 Jofeyy Buipnxe [QIVS) AugelY uognquysiq
Jeah SARNIBSUOD PUOISS SJuaplooy JUBPI0oY BDIYaN . (jeyuswipedaq) igauibug
1o} BjoIYBA B|qejUBAald ON 2101Ua/\ 3|qBIUBARIH ON a|qejuaald BUO UBY} aI0W ON 70k ¥ Sjuapiody 0IUSA B|qEIUBARId AlBjeS :cz_,_n:__wm_n
JESA SAIINDSSUOYD PUOIAS . Jgauibug
10} SIUBPIDOY BUWLL 1807 ON Sjuapiady sl §s07 ON sjuepiody Jofep ON %S 4 sluapioy awl] 1507 :Aisjes uonnquisiq
pioysaiyy JuBlom 910N 1209 deg  uopisod

(36)



WIN EFERC] WIN %01 3pINg g Aoljod SINS pueig GojoAs(  JeDEUE}y Duneyen
Bunaap Bupasyy we)sAg |enuuy pue Ipny yim
VN pieog Alenuer 1e asesjoy YN %S} asesjay 0] pIeD Hoday [enuuy gndy, aiedaid labeueyy Bunayep
faljod + sppsloid g Roljod + spaeloid ¢ honod + sjoeloid %01 Aod pua 1eBeuepy Bupaxen
’ ' . * : : o weibBoid Buussunjop, sakojdwy feuno dojanag :
0202 ‘o€ ludy Aq 0Z0Z '0€ aunr Aq JAd Aq %S welboid sjunoody Ay ysiiqeis3  Jabeuepy Bunsyep
SPIEMY BIO 10 Z piEemy | WIN %0l pIEMY LONEDIUNWILICY Ul 90Ua|jaoX] Yddy Jebeuepy Bunayiep
‘safiessaw Bunsod/Buidojenap 10y Ayjigisuodsal
pUE ‘SUOHEDIUNWILLOD PUNOGINO JO} PjoysaiL)
ysygeis3 -sabessew punoqul Y| ‘Buibessalu
VIN EPER VIN %G1 X2 ‘B1ISqAM ‘GNHUBWS WO SUOKEIYRoU laBeuepy Bunexiep|
ysnd 'eipajy [e10os Buisn uejd suonesIuNWWoD
abeyng dojans( :suonesunwwo) abeing
VIN fjyuopy panss| YIN %G1 ue|d Juajuo) eipsiy (100 Ayiuop  JaBeueyy Bunaxep|
1B9 ) BANJASUOY puodasg 5
10§ SJUBPIOOY UL 1S ON SJuUBpIooY awl] S0 ON sjuspiooy Jofep oN %01 Z Sjuepiody sl 1807 ,.».Hw_mw labeuepy Bunsxyien
A4 Aq %56 A Aq %68 9 senoy Se0INes
i 3A4 79 %06 A4 A4 %S 7404 Buiouanbasayy/sialai IINY 40 uonoadsu) [ensip plail4 ‘1osiuadng
$¥0NJ} 1O UO SYpne EELIITETS
0202/1/z Aq Juswiajdw) 0202/1/5 Ad yuswajdui| 0z02/1/8 Aq Juswajdwi %S 1 fioses Ajupuow uuoped pue sy ¥o8u) dojarsa plal4 ‘1osiadng
Ad 1043100 Ad 04 A4104100 S80IBS
SYOOM ¥ SNPAYOS UIBIUIBIY INO SYOOM € INPALIS UIBJUIBYY  SYBOM  Binpayos uieuiey 70 3INP3YIS qor Buluiuiyil 9311 PAISOd UEWEN g, - 05iniadng
aoue||dwoa-2 NIy} pajiwagns S80S
VN 1991 a3 Jof BujoBug N %Sl se Ajiep suoioadsul 3onJ} uo Yo ubis pue mainay plet4 Josiuadng
; : g {z10z-99¢} 3331 Ul pauyag EEailiEs
T TNy Fevk el %0t se sheq Jueng Jofejy Buipnjoxa (QIYS) AWIGRIY  Piald osinisdng
1eaA annoasuoo
5 S|USpI2Y apiody spiyan ; seoluag
PUZ 10} Sjuepiooy %02 ¥ Sjuspiooy SPIUBA Blqejuanald ‘Aigjes ’ |
SRIUBA 2{qEIUBABI ON S[OIYSA Bjgejuanald oN 8|qejuUaAa.d SUO UBY} BJ0W ON piei4 ‘Jospuadng
1eak 8ARN28sU0D i ; oy Rooge SaoINeg
puZ 10§ SIUSPIKDY J0lE ON Sjuspiady Jolep ON WiIN %G 9 Sjuspioy Jole ‘Msjeg piol4 ‘Josinadng
1eaA BAINIBSUCD pUg s ] awij 1s07 0 g uspIooy awl | 1507 Aeje soes
1O} SUBPIDY BLUIL S0 ON JUBpIooy Buwl| 1S07 ON WIN %S5 1 4 sjuspiooy auwl | 1s07 ‘Ajgjes pleld ‘osinadng
T TR
ploysaiy) wBlam 80N 1209 3deq / uonisod

(37)



58DUDJA [p12UaT) 2] Aq pauIuia1p S SUOLISISINS 2]quif--L |

sadupy2 adoas ynm

§702(0.4d 10 $122(0.4d JPRSRUR IPNJOX2/APNIIUT 01 UOIPAISIP SDY ADSDUDIY [D42U2D) Waw2001da4 Juawdinby JUnE pup ‘Spauwa404du] (oUIpy UoUDISGNS quamidojdacy
wowdmnby y ‘wawaaoiduy Kj1qpiay ‘S1UaWo01daY pup YSIqInay Junowpod “(Suruoiounf pup pajqpua) UONDI0ISIY 4apaas] Aoy :apnjoul s10afo4d — 91

012 40ddns dooo pup 1wl Uy Surzijp1d2ds SJUDINSUOD ‘sdops 1xaU ‘9014425 ap1ao.d 01 1500 pup yuauiloldap yiomdu 40f 51500 1001dA3 ‘Bjp1a442y Ul P iU
sauajpoyo ‘(212 “4oqif ss200p uado '|oUOIPDAY) S|APOU SSaUISNG ‘(912 ‘PrqAY X002 2.43q1f ‘H L 1+]) S2dA) yomiau ‘Sanssi p3a] 'SvX3 0] 21fioads pup j242] IPIAUOIIOU

D y10q 1 pupqpPPO.4q Sutiaffo sarpm 01410512 dood pup 1N JO LIDWWNS ‘WU ID SS2IPPD PITOYS roday o001 03 wns sppod [jp aypui 01 parp.104d 3q J]1M $131;0
J1p ‘parsnipp s1 28p1u22.42d |03 Sty U Y SIUGUUSISSD jautiosuad pup 1i0dad fo 2dods uo paspq 12SPUDJY [D42U2D) I} Aq paupuiaiap a9 0) a8pguad4ad [oulsd ~ ¢ |

‘(12 ‘sa1100.4d 150G Suimoljof ‘aw1ido4ddp syui) AnIpu 240 ‘Ma1A24 o 204n0s 42Y30) Ma1aa4 N0 J JUAUISIAU] 9 ‘Siaquidut [ OAD HIA BupyiomgaN
"¢ (012 ‘sa1114n23s dn days) suoirdo juaLISIAUL 4310 ap3ns2aU] p ‘SYFAD 10f SpIg "€ ‘DD 2JjIALI2Y U} JO PISINO SUOTINIIISU] Supnjout s 40f Sp1q [pUI0s]
7 ‘suondo uawsaau] ua.Lnd fo uosLipduiod pup aouvuiiofiad punf 12024 Jo uostipduio? 01 s110da.4 21IUIO)) JudUIS24U] fO SHoOf YIYS “| :apiyoul SAAIDY — f]

‘s8u1aps jpasif

pup sSuraps Kouatorffa 22.4mosad 10qp] parpdionup uodn pasoq parioda. aq pjioys pup uoypiawajdiil 03 4o14d O Aq paaoaddp aq jjim spuowaa04dui] Ss2204d — €]

B ossioniteishiten an.c.nfiitett e A e > 7 T4
- D UO paspq |DoL) Sppay 210 pup TuaMUIDIY BUippay ‘(ioruauipdacy) Kopanoaoy Suippay 4of inodod uo paspq juauia421Yy [P0D waun.ioda(] SUIPaY 1313 — 6
T T : « PO (D1192] PRIIU] SIUIPIFID A0IDIN — 9
T pawmnon jou aav savpijoy puv
spuayaay Bunsar uawAodwa-a.1d 42y uonsod ay; s1da2ov jupayddp 2y} UdYMm Spua pup Buisiraaapp/3utisod Jof paao.addp si uonisod 2y UsYM S1ADJS 1UN02 A — ¢

“au1] 150] SKOP € UDYI 240Ul U1 Suinsad saLnfu1 12y10 pup w1 150j u1 Bungnsad sarnfut 1900

T 28nwpp Aiadoad wuparfiudis 4o Kinfur yim suapIOUL 43410 .10 Spiap199D 3] qonaasd ppo uo of Jafal Ajpioauad Ssuap1ooy 2112 iy
e o 10 Suuawia 3o apnjoti 10U S30(T — §

-aumsodxa |pyiawLindap pup 2ouaniful uo pasoq Kua4affip panySiam oo S|pO [prp1aIpU] “U242MOF] S2240]duia Ip SIPN]oUL [DOT A1afps ay1 fo yuamaasa1o0 Y[ — 7

01 pauSissp 51 .40 S2SPUDW DRPIAIPUT 21 WaWIIDdA( 2y} *2°1 'SISPq (DI D U0 pautuiidap 39 OL — |

L - S3ON TN 020T

6lLoz/eLet

(38)




